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Reclaim Fund makes it possible
for money in dormant bank

and building society accounts
fo be used to help good causes

OUR PURPOSE OUR MISSION ‘

We unlock the potential of We safeguard the rights of

dormant assets fo enhance dormant asset holders while

communities and enrich lives optimising the financial
benefits for good causes

OUR VALUES

Integrity Responsibility
Honesty in everything Fulfilling our obligations,

we do ensuring accountability
Collaboration Agile
supporiing each ofher Continually enhancing our

by being stronger together knowledge and competence
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10 YEARS OF ENHANCING COMMUNITIES

10 YEAR ANNIVERSARY

2021 marks a celebratory year as RFL
reaches its milestone 10 year anniversary

OUR PARTICIPANTS

Our participants continue to
contfribute significant transfers

of dormant balances.

GROWTH STORY

£1.44bn

dommant cccounts fransferred

c2,500

good causes benefiting
across 4 countries

£106m

resclaimed by
account holdars

134,000

acoounts reclaimed

31

parhicipating firms in
the Main Scheme

2

parhicipating Building Societies
in the Altermnative Schaeme

(NGNEY

VIRGIN MONEY

How do you feel about being part of the Dormant Assets Scheme
and what has it meant to your organisation over the last 10 years?

It's great to know that we've been able fo play our part in making funds
available to good causes up and down the country, whilst ensuring

we can fully maest all reclaims ansing from our customears. It's o great
example of what the industry can achieve by working together, rather
thain pursuing Individual strategies.

How does being part of the Dormant Assets Scheme fit with your
overall responsible business strategy?

As a bank we aim o kesp in touch with our customerns on a regular basis;
howevar someatimes, through vanious circumstancas, this connection can
b braken. Whan wa can't re-connect with our custormers, and the funds
mova to a legally dormant status, it's o really imporfant componeant of
our Environmental, Social ond Corporate Govemance (ESGT) Strategy
that these deposits are put o work for the benefit of society and working
with fhe Reclaim Fund allows us fo do this

What are your thoughts on your future participation and what
would you say to anyone considering jeining?

We will confinue to participate in the Schame and encourage othear
financial institutions fa do the same. Tha tearn at Feclaim Fund are
great fo work with and make everything as straightforward as they
can fo help you become a part of the Scheme. t's great to be part

of something bigger than any individual provider can achieve on their
own and, the maore institutions that join, the greater the value of funds
that can be given to good causes,

L

It's great o know that we've been able fo
play our part in making funds available to
good causes up and down the country...”

Zack Hocking
Head of Personal Deposits - Virgin Money
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

Total

£800m

Ap

The Mo

140434 29ILVHLS ‘

FINVHUAADD ‘ ‘

OUR PURPOSE

We unlock the potential of

dormant assets to enhance
communities and enrich lives

YEARS

Agile

The team smaathly transitioned
o waorking from home in light of
the pandamic

SIMAWALYLS THIDNYMIE ‘ ‘

Collaboration

We continue to develop excellent
relationshigs with industry and
Government in faking forward the
expansicn of the scheme

Responsibility

We take our responsibility for holding
sufficient funds fo pay reclaims sencusly,
with extensive devalopmant of reclaim
miedeling

Integrity

We support on-boarding of new
participants and continue fo encourage
wider participation in fhe Altermative
Scheme through focilitation of workshops
for potential new joiners

‘ SINYIZNLEY ANY NOLYWHOINI HIHLO ‘
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHAIR'S REVIEW

JANE HANSON
Chair

In a year like no other, RFL has
remained resilient, making a strong
contribution to the COVID-19 relief effort
and positioning itself to help lead the
development of the Scheme into the
next phase of its evolution, working
with the Government to expand the
range of orphan, dormant and gone
away assets o be made available to
good causes.

4 Reclaim Fund Lid Annucl Report and Accounts 2020

Last vear, | reported that REL was facing
into a year of change. Mo one could have
imagined the scale of change ught
abaut in 2020 and | am thus delighted fo
hove led the Board through anather year

of growth, consolidaton and development,

| am pleased and privileged fo chair an
organisation that continues 1o actively
confribufe to improve people’s lives in such
o unigue way and am proud thal REL was
able to releo considerable funds

specifically o help front-line chartable

organisations to support many peopla
ocross the UK in the foce of the mony
challenges presented by COVID-19

THE BOARD

Tha Booard continuas ta be prowd fo
ocwersee the achievements of RFL and
continues o opearate effectivaly. | would
lika fo thank my fellow Board membears for
fheir confinued constructive challenge,
diligence and guidancea during a yaar of
considerable change, and particularly the
becare] wark of the Board Commitiess

As RFL moves into its second decode, it

x5 50 under naw ownearship and with
the prospect of an expanded scheme.

| wiowuld like fo express my sincere thanks
ive Graup Lid, our founder

ond ocwner fior the first 10 years, for ably

e Thoes ™
o The Co-0p

supporting and stewarding us through
the first decode

| ook forward 1o working with the team ot
HMT in the new era and to welcoming o

Investments who will represent HMT as cur
shareholdar,

As a result of the sale of RFL o HMT,
our two former shareholder appointed
Mon-Exacutive Directors, Dominic Kendal

Ward and Mark Summerfield, have left our

Board. Mark, the Chiafl Exacutive of Co-op
Insurance joined the Board in 2015 and
has Brought his considerable skills and

axparience in Financial Services to the
Board over the last six years, Dominic
joinad us in 2019 and, with his profassional
background in corparate low, has been

o great asset to the team, Wa are grateful
o both Mark ang Dominic for thair

LINWIYETIMG 5

ort fo RFL. We will miss

them Doth



I 2000, we also said a very fond farewell o
aur long-standing Mon-Exacutive Directar,
Adrion Coles. who hod been with us since
2011, Adrian held the role of Senlor
Independeant Director and Chair of our
Remuneration Carmmittes, | will parsanclly
miss his wisdom and counsel, and the
Board and | are incredibly grateful for his
senvice, dedication and sound advice.

GOVERNANCE

RFL continues to maintain strong
governance, systems and controls,
Managing significant funds entrusted to us
for distiibution to good couses and making
sufficient provision for reclaims comes with
significant responsibility.

Last year | reported that we had
undertaken o Board Effectivenass Review,
and this concluded in early 2000, Whils this
process provided recssuring external
independent validotion of our
effectiveness, it has alzo provided o small
nurmber of opportunities to further
enhance our governance frameswork and
ensure it remains it for purpose under new
awnership and for operating an expanded
schame. | will be overseaing the transition
to a simplified reporting frameweork that
retainsg the rigour of our existing approach,

In 2020, RFL confinued fo support the
development of dormant asset schemes
infernationally, working with Jersey, Japan
and Guermsay, | was personally delighted
to see the new Guemsey schame
commence operating in Decembear 2020,

I am very proud that REL is now seen as the
blueprint for international best practice and
that our Chief Executive, Adrian Smith, has
worked colloboratively to help shope fhe
infernational dormant assets landscoape.

As Adnan describes in his staferment, we
continue fo actively engage and work with
Government and | have personally
enjoyed positive working relationships with
both Ministers & officials in the Departrment
for Digital, Culture, Media & Sport (DCMET
and HMT. | leok forward fo working even
more closely with them as we expand the
Schame under new ownership,

OUR TEAM

' would like to personally thank Adrian
for his confinued leadership of the very
capable and high performing team

at [FL during this unprecedented year.
| parficularly wont to recognise fhe
cammitment af the team during the
aextremely challenging conditions in
the Spring of 2020,

At o fime of significant change, the
professionalism of Adrion and the team
continues fo support the delivery of

our objectives as well as preparing to
maximise the new opportunities that

lie ahead.

It rermaing o pleasure baoth for me and miy
fellow Board members o work with fhe
team and our stakehalders to help so
many good couses access funds, that
otherwise would remain dormant, RFL is
wall positioned and prepared for the
expanded Dormoant Assets S3cheme, and
we loak forward fo making an even greater
difference to people’s lives in the fubure,

JAME HANSON
Chair

20 April 2021
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REVIEW

ADRIAN SMITH
Chief Executive

The end of our first decade was
marked by a period of uncertainty
driven by the national and global
response to COVID-19. Despite this,
we delivered what we set out to do -
contributed to the funds made
available to support the COVID-19
relief effort and worked positively with
Government on scheme expansion
and new ownership. The course is set
for an ambitious second decade.

Far wirtually evaryons in the warld, the
backdrop to 2020 was COVID-19. Like many
others we entered 2020 with clear plans

for the year ahead but by March we,

along with the rest of the warld, found

we had new priorities

Cwr team responded admirably to the
challenges posad by the global pandemic
and, despite an unpredictable March
and April, the business achieved its
annual plan with a sclid performonce
ond good levels of porficipation. In fact,
wie walcomed two rew participants fo
the Main Dormaont Assets Scheme: CIMB
Berhad and R Raphasl and San, and ans
new participant, Caomoridge Building
Saciety, to the Allemoative Schames,

faking total participants to 33, with many
interested paorties confinuing discussions
s thay ook ta join,

Importanthy, in Moy 2020, as part of o
national rasponss we ware abla to relaase
subpstantial funds to support COVID-12
relief effarts, This was achisved faster than
planned but with no compramise on the
principles of consumer protection which
undearpin the Scheme. Ta date we have
poid over £4656m fo The Mational Lottery
Carmrmunity Fund {THMLCF), and following
Boord approval, set aside a further

E1dd4m which is available for immediate

drow down.

| wiould particularly like o thank cur
Participants for confinuing fo prioritise
dormmant assets as part of their cperafions
while facing thair own challenges during
fhese unprecedented times and to my
Board and feam colleagues af RFL for
fhizir support to the business.

2020 IN REVIEW

Cur 2009 investment in T infrastructune
paid immediate dividends in the ropid
micve to o home-working environrment
and | am extremely grateful to fhe team

for facilitating that move and embracing
new ways of working without hesitation.
We have, of course, also found naw, digital
woys of working with Scheme Participants
during the yvear, many of which we will
retain moving forwarnd.
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2020 was alsa our 10th year of rurning the
UK's only authorised Reclaim Fund and | do
hope that it will e possible to celebrate in
parson with colleagues, Porficipants and
ather stakeholders towards the end of 2021,

| arm immensely proud that, throughout
the last decode, we hove grown the scaole
of our oparation from safeguarding £400m
in assets in 2011 to £1.5bn in 2020, We have
achieved all this while continually being

in a pasition to retum dormnont assets fo
their ariginal cwnears - giving back over
£100rm fo date - whilst distributing £750m
to good couses,

NEW OWMNERSHIP

Lote in September 20019, the QNS classified
RFL as a NDPEB for the purposes of statistical
analysis. This reflects the fact thaot dormant
asset policy is owned by the UK Government
and RFL was enabled by o Government
Act to independently manage fhe Scheme

During 2020, we have been working with
Government and our owner, The Co-
oparative Group Lid, to agree the most
appropriate course of action following
the ONS classification.

All porties agreed that the sole of RFL fo
Govarnmeant would be benaficial far the
long-termn future expansion of the Scheme.
As aresult, from 30 March 2021 RFL
became o NDPE cwnead by HMT which

will continue fo operate independenthy

as an Arm's Length Bady.

I would like to sincerely thank The Co-
oparative Group for helping to establish RFL
in 2017 and for its successful stewardship

af the Company over the last 10 years,
enabling three-fald growth in the value

af the assets in our care and supporting

us in preparnng for Scheme expansion.

Work is well underway to ensure that our
Board structure and corporate govemance
are well positioned fo opfimise the
apportunities broughl by new ownership
and the expanded Scheme.

MODELLING AND INVESTMENTS

In parallel, we hove been working with
professional achuaries fo develog a mora
sophisticoted Reclaim Risk Model, The
autput of this work, which has still fo be
agreed with ocur regulator, the Financial
Cornduct Autharity (FCATY, will help us
balance aur obligotion alwoys o have
funds available to meet custamer recloims
in parpetuity with the ability to distribute
the maximum funds to good couses. This
work will also be helpful as we expand the
Scheme to include new asset classes.

During 2020, we sow sustained turbulence
in the investment market which contributed
te lovey rates of return across our investrment
portfolio. We consciously chaose a low risk
invvestment strategy to reduce the
likalinood of inancial losses and we ara
pleased to report no counterparty failure in
the year.

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

Depending on how the UK's response to
COVID-19 progresses, | hope fo be able to
celebrate our 10th anniversary in person
with as many of our stokeholders as
possible before the end of 2021, Coming
toegether with Participants, supporfers and
representatives of some of the 2,500 good
causes we have supporfed in changing
thz lives of 700,000 people across four
nations from Land's End to John O'Groats
will be a fitting end fo what promises to be
another eventful year,

| arm very much locking forward to
welcoming in the next 10 years,

ADRIAN SMITH
Chief Executive

20 April 2021

EXPANSION OF
THE SCHEME

During 2020, tha Governmaeant hald a
public consulfaticn on expanding the
dormant asset scheme. In Janucry
2021, it published its response to the
consultation. This confirmed the
Govarnment's intention fo bring
forward Frimary Legislation fo expand
the Scheme info three new asset
closses: Insurance and pensions:
Irvestment and wealth manageament;
and Securities.

The Governmeant also announced its
intent for RFL to operate as the UK's
sole authorised Reclaim Fund in the
future. We now look forward fo working
with HMT and DCMS, regulators and
industry fo understand how to
colloborate in expanding the Scheme
we operate on behalf of the
Governmeant,

In the meantime, RFL confinues to
operate the axisting Scheme
prudently against cur very clear terms
of reference. During 2020, | spoke ot
online events run by all three sectors
to ba included in Scheme expansion
to help them understand how it may
become operational, We will continue
to work very closely with the three new
sectors in 2021, including individual
firrns and their respactive fraode
associations.

Find out more on page 13
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STRATEGIC REPORT

FROM DORMANCY
TO DISTRIBUTION

The principal activity of RFL is
the receipt and management
of dormant account monies.

ABOUT THE DORMANT ASSETS SCHEME

RFL is a not-for-profit recloim fund and is
autharised and regulated by the FCA as
a dormont account fund cperator.

The Dormant Bank and Building Socisty
Accounts Act 2008 (The Act”) enalbles
those banks and building societies, that
choose to participate in the Scheme
("Parficipants™), fo fransfer fo RFL money
held in eligible bank and building society
accounts which have remained domnant
tar 15 yvaars ar mare with no customer-
infficted transactions. The Act ensures
that the right of occount holders to reclaim
thair money, at any time, is protected in
perpetuity by fransferriing the individual's
claim aganst the bank or building society
o RFL.

RFL manages the maney thal il receives
prudently in accordance with the Act and
retevant regulatory requirements, ensuring
that it ahways has encugh moneay available
to be able to mest any customer reclaims
that may arise and fo satisfy its capifal
requirements and meet its reascnable
expenses, If the Boord of RFL determines
that there is surplus money available, it can,
under fhe Act, distribute this to TMLCF for
the beneafit of good causes across the UK.

Farficipation in fhe Scheme by banks and
building sochketies is voluntary.

The Act establishes two types of Scheme:

+ @ Main Scheme: and
= an Alfemative Scheme,

Under the Main Schame, the whole of
o domnont occount bolance must be
transierred to RFL,

Im contrast, under the Alternative Scheme,
a participating bank or building sociaty
can choose to tfransfer an agreed
proportion of a dormant account balonce
to RFL and the ramaining porfion fo one or
more eligible charities. The Aternofive
Schems is only open to smaller banks and
building societies with balaonce sheet asset
values below &7bn which satisfy certain
aligibility criteria.

The diagrams on pags @ show and display
the organisations that support the Schame
and display the key activities that ocour
and tha ficws of domant balanceas, All
activiies are undenzinned by fhe Act aond
RFL's articles of assaciation, A transfer and
agency agreameant is also in place
between RFL and each participating bank
of building society that establishes the
contrachual framework between each
Participant and REL

Before transfer of army dormant acocount
mioney fo RFL, banks and building socisties
must make attempts to reunify dormant
account holdars with thair funds, Where
this proves unsuccessiul, balances that
meet the criteria set out in the Act may be
aligitle for fransfer fo RFL, provided they
satisfy certain reguirements specified in
the contractual framework batwesan RFL
and participants.

If dormant occount hoelders subsequently
wish to reclaim thair funds, the relavant
bark or building society is appointed to
act on behalf of RFL in reunifying them with
fhedr funds and remains responsible for
managing all aspects of the custormer
relationship. AL holds no customer
information and custormers therefore have
no direct relationship with RFL.

RFL participates in fhe Financiol Services
Compeansation Scheme (FSC57, ensuring
thiat the transfer to RFL of a dormant
occount bolance will not adversely affect
any enfitlernent a customer may have to
compensaficn from the FSCS. RFL is also
coverad by the Anancial Ombudsman
Service.

If you think you have unclaimed monies
in a bank or building society account
Please contact the bank or building
soclety concarnad or visit rmylostaccount:

L] mylestaccount.org.uk
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MAIN SCHEME

DORMANT ACCOUNT
HOLDER

Attempted

reunification balance

BANK OR BUILDING
SOCIETY
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@ i

TRAMSFER RECLAIM
dormant customer
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balance

l I

Reclaim
Fund Lid

l

Transfer surplus funds to

THE NATIONAL LOTTERY
COMMUNITY FUND

MNorthern
@ o @

GOOD CAUSES

Repay customer

ALTERNATIVE
SCHEME

DORMANT ACCOUNT
HOLDER

Attempted
reunification

Repay customer
balance

BANK OR BUILDING
SOCIETY

TRANSFER % TRANSFER % RECLAIM

SURPLUS dormant customer
dormant balances balance
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Reclaim
Fund Lid

ELIGIBLE
CHARITY
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STRATEGIC REPORT

#ENHANCINGCOMMUNITIES

RFL is the pivot that links Government,
industry and communities

As the regulated
operator of the Scheme,
RFL worked closely

with Government to
accelerate distributions
following careful
consideration by our
Board to ensure that
this was done prudently
and in line with
consumer protections.

COVID-19 FOCUS

As a result, in May 2020, Secretary

of State for Culture, Media and Sport
Oliver Dowden announced the
release of ©150m of dormaont asset
funding to be utilised to ease the
impact of the Coronavirus pandemic
on charifies and social entarprises.

Big Society Capital, FairdAll Finance,
Youth Futures Foundation and
Access - the Foundation for Social
investment, repositioned previous
funding and immediately starfed

a number of programmes focused
on emeargeancy funding via various
recovery and resilience schemeas

(see page 11).

As af foday, over 250 front-line
community organisations are due
to benefit from this dormant asset
funding at a time when it has never
been more needed.

Thase four organisations confinue

fo focus on the recovery phase by
introducing a new blended flexible
finance product and initiating
programmes such as Inspiring Futures
and expanding Affordable Cradit
Scale-up offerings.

OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION

We unlock the potential of
dormant assets to enhance
communifies and enrnch lives

10 Reclaim Fund Lid Annuacl Report aond Accounts 2020



OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION

FAIR4ALL FINANCE

tairdallfinance.org.uk

> fairall

financa

FairdAll Finance recognised that
during the pandemic it was more
important than ever that the financial
system was supportive of the millions
of people in vulnerable financial
circumstances. They established

a £5m Covid-19 Resilience Fund fo
help the community finance sector
emearge from the pandemic ina
resilient state.

The Fund was specifically designed to
sustain capacity in the community inoncs
sactor and accelardta innovation to
enable GFQ{IHISAJTI{J'\S to dalver better
sarvica to thair customers, utilising
fechnclogy where appropriate.

COne exomple of this is Clockwise Credit
Union who received a £215k grant for
fnancial and technical support, This
gnabled Clockwise o infroduce a Key
Wiarkar Loan with a lower intarast rate thon
would normally be available. The loan
could e accassed by MHS staff,
supermarket stoff and other key workers
who needed additional support. Key
wiorkers used fhe loan to subsidise their
overall household income due o partners
losing or seeing reduchions in thair income,
of to pay for costs of childeare fo enable
them ta continue warking. The grant
enabled Clackwisa to offer a lower intarast
rate with no negative impact to their
business and the customer was able

fo access a more affordable loan

-

For more information on how FairdAll
Finance ara working towards a fairer inoncial
system, including their expanded Affordoble
Cradit Scale Up Programme, please visit
www. lairdallfinance.org.uk

bigsocietycapital.com

Big Society Capital have
invested over £125m since the
first lockdown in a wide array of
organisations, including utilising
£25m to set up the Resilience and
Recovery Loan Fund {'RRLF")
which, as at January 2021, has
approved loans of over £20m at
social enterprizes and charities.

One such example is the charity and
close core hausing provider, Belong,
which creates villoge communities fo
enable clder people to live the lives
they choose and, in particular, fo
enabla those living with dementia fo
ratain choics and indepandancs in
as many areas of thair lives as
possible. The villages provide a range
of support and housing opficns for
alder people, as well as extensive
amenities at the viloge cenfre

Mary older peopla are unable 1o live
complately indepandentty and inding
suitable care can be a challengs.
Balong pravides support through
several options: 24-hour care
including nursing and dementia
support, which is provided in
households for up fo 12 people. while
apartments are availatle for those
looking to ratain some independence
with the reassurance of being part of
@ Ccaring community.

BG
SOCIETY
CAPITAL

Big Society Copital's £30m investrment
in The Rothbones Charity Bond
Support Fund hos enabled the further
irvestmeant of £50m into the Belong
charity bond, As a resull aof this
invastmeant, Balong has been able

to expand its services and builld new
villages in Chester and Birkdale which
are due to openin 2021722,

Despite having to close villoges

to members of the public during
leckdown i 2020, sarvces continuad
whare possible includ ng aufraach
services offered to peopla in their
awn homes.

OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION

BIG SOCIETY CAPITAL

re

Im 2020 Belong provided

4,700

number of expenence days

7900

plarinad everts and aclivitkes

63,400

number of hours of core

|
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STRATEGIC REPORT

#ENHANCINGCOMMUNITIES

In response to the pandemic, Youth
Futures Foundation partnered with
BEC Children in Nead to create

the Inspiring Futures Fund - a £7m
funding pot for youth and community
organisations to support children
and young people on their journey
towards employment.

The funding priortises reaching young
people from marginalised backgrounds,
ncluding ethnic minarities, those with
pchysicol disabilities, young people with
enparience of care or the criminal justice
systems, those with leaming dificulties or
mental health challenges, and young
people from low-income families,

The Inspinng Futures Fund has mode
awards fo 107 organisations across

the UK. Friends, Families and Travellars
(FFT) received o grant of £75k to support
children and young people from the
Gypsy and Troveler Community, mony

af wham face barriers to employmeant,
neluding experience of homelessnass,
poar rmental haalth related o
displacament, harassmeant, and abuse
The funding has enabled FFT to provide
digital skills fraining fo support young
people o fully participate in online
education and social activities and improve
access fo fufure fraining ond employment
apporhunities

youthtuturesfoundation.org L

OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION

YOUTH FUTURES
FOUNDATION

i arganisalions
support uremployed, disodvarioges
young peopke acrass the cauwntry

nta jobs

OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION

The Alternative Scheme

e

Participating in the Darmant Accounts
Scheme is a way to revitalise dormant

funds, and helps us creafe a funding

legacy in the name of our members for the
benefit of people who need support right
across our communities. By investing into
our endowment fund at the Community
Foundation, we're ensuring that support
for our communities will confinue for years

o come,”

ANDREW HAIGH

NEWCASTLE
__ BUILDING SOCIETY

newcastie.co.uk [

Newcastle

Buikding !_i-':-':l-:ll'r'

Chief Executive of Newcastle Building Soclety

In July 2020, Newcastle Building
Society announced a new &-year
parinership with Newcastle United
Foundation, which will see a £1.1m
investment partly funded through
the Dormant Account Scheme.

Az well as supporfing the Foundation's
ambitious plans to develop o state-of-the-
art community facility in fhe city, the
Society is partnering with their MU Futures
programme, which supports thousonds

"MUCASTLE powerad by Mewcasile Building
Society’. Due to open early in 2022, and a
frve-rminute walk from Mewcastle United's
hame ground, the centre will be the new
harme af the Faundation and provide a
city centre hubt championing excellence
Ineducation, eamplaymeant and physical
arnd mental health and wal -bEing.

the Morth of Tyne region,

Mewcastie United Foundation will use some
of the money invested to develop a new
community focility officially known os
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#UKDORMANTASSETSSCHEME

In December 2020, Northern
Ireland announced the launch
of the Dormant Accounts Fund
NI, ufilising the £20m which has
been allocated from the UK
Dormant Assets Scheme.

T
=1
The Fund is to be mode availak .
. =1
LS I B " banefit the third sactar in Narthern 2
o Ireland, hrough projects 0
prirmanly deliverso o
— o
Community and Social E %
UPDATE w J— - - I —
organisatons to incredss CoOpacity
NORTHERN IRELAND o) Dormant Accounts B o esiince cnd anco.
sustainability
The programme will be delivered by
The Mational Lattery Community
Furd M and the first phose
for applicaticns in January 2021,
providing a flexible and responsive
grant progromme that will support o
. Q
<
=
=2
=
=
=z
0
m

The Expanded Scheme

In February 2020, Government = = 56 L
launched a public consultation on o ofher authorised Insurance and pensions
the plans to expand the Dormant fune

Assets Scheme to gather a wider za 2008, whean the ircl A Investment and

set of views on the proposed 3 )

approach. There were 89 wealth mu"ugemeni
responses to the consultation, Qg

representing more than 500 IOTISE € Securities

organisafions and individuals. £

Respondents supported the

proposals fo expand the Scheme

and offered recommendations on

improving certain technical

SIMAWALYLS TIDNYMIA

nificl £880m avai
of social and envircnmental initiort

Q www.gov.uk/government/publications/government-response-to-the-consultation-on-
expanding-the-dormant-asseis-scheme/government-response-to-the-consultation-
on-expanding-the-dormant-ossets-scheme
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STRATEGIC REPORT

#ENHANCINGCOMMUNITIES

WHERE ARE THEY NOW?

Ovwver the last 10 years, we have held 8 events to bring stakeholders together and
demonstrate the impact of dormant asset funding. Beneficiary organisations from
across the UK have attended over the years and we have faken the opportunity fo

see where they are now.

centrestagemi.org.uk

OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION

CENTRESTAGE

CentreStage uses the arts to connect
communities, providing sustained
access fo inspire and engage
people of all ages and backgrounds, A s during fhe pondemic
addressing negafive ouicomes arising 1 production hoy
from deep rooted inequalities, hald, while the team has focused on phone
isolation, and poor emotional call cheack-ing, socially distanced visits and
wellbeing. shicring some af theair "Tun’ acliviby onlins far
. anjoy at home

A0, the organisation hos
4 cand welloeing

~erable across

2 Ut on

1200,

of @ Saotland where evaryons in

3 1o rachse their potantial amnd

900

80
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renewwales.org.uk

Renew Wales is a practitioner-led
programme which helps
communities in Wales reduce
their carbon footprint, adapt to
the impacts of climate change
and live more sustainably.
Renew Wales is funded via the
Sustainable Steps programme
which is run by The National
Lottery Community Fund Wales
originating from the Dormant
Assets Scheme.

Established in 2001 in the Rivarside
area of Cardiff. Wormen Connect Firs
("WCFY is anindependent resource
centre for ethnic minority women,
WNIKCN Provices a wide na "lgv.'-_'e :'_'.-|
SEMVIGCES and SuUppor

Rernew Wales weare abla to support
WCF vic a mentor providing building
and energy audit reparts as to how
they might reduce energy costs and
operate more sustainobly, Through
Dormant Asset funding, WCF has been
abxle to r:—*pl'”'i—* the radiatars in their

Fie rur in I'.— l:|I'U:-" |rnc1|u
g wiorkshops looking ot va

Ous

[
aspects of the togic that would help

support wormen fo come up with
solufions to act fogether

beateatingdisorders.org.uk

During 2014 and 2015, Beat
received funding originating

from the Dormant Assets Scheme
which has been used to expand
their key volunteering programme
in Scotland - the Beat
Ambassador programme.

This expansion became a springboard
for o full fransformation of the
programme throughout the UK, The
CIogramme ermpowers people who
hove been offected by eating
disorders fo share their experiences
and provides a vital message that

e

aims o prevent athers suffering

thiey honee, As a resull of The Tund
Boat hove recruited aver 200
volunfears across the country and
now reach thousands of peocple
annually with the message that
everyone whao is offected by ,ch ng
disorders deserves support and
-ane should suffer alone

Participonts included women who were
aniginally from Haly, Pakistan, China
Bangladesh, Morocoo, Turkey, Spain
Fg_:\;;:. ordan and Sudan, and with this
input WCF ¢
Qs striving to be

=

plastic-free, composting

orgonic woste and encouraging meat-free

doys amongst staff and volunteers. They

have also begun work fowaords achieving o

=n Dragon award (on environmental
ard awarded to o 15 whao
are taking achio
arwvirenmantal imgpo

thedr

Eeting diondes

Beat has been the greatest thing |'ve
ever done. It gefs betfer and better
every year, It has given me so much

elaping initlativas such

OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION

RENEW WALES

£1m

E1rm into gro
crganEations in W

512..

Cammurity

helpead 1

60+

6ls groen

OUR PURPOSE IN ACTION

BEAT

and kept me well. Beat has given me a

voice that | hove developed and

gained the confidence fo use properly.”

Beat Ambassador

Camrm

Reclaim Fund Lid Annucl Report and Accounts 2020
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STRATEGIC REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of RFL is the receipt
and managamant of darmant account
manies. The Company has been aclively
opsrating since 28 March 2011,

The Compony wos established as o

whally owned subsiciary of the Co-
aperative Group Limited via its subsidicrny
Co-operative Financial Services Limited
(now known as ASIL, following the
introduction of the Act. Lote in September
2019, tha ONS informead the Gaovernment of
its decision fo clossify RFL fo the Central
Government Sectar for statistical purpossas,
effective retrospectively fo RFLs
establishment, As a result of the QNS
classification, RFL was included in the
Government Resources and Accounts Act
2000 (Estimates and Accounts)
Arnendment Crder 2020 and becoarme part
of the budgetary regime, beaing
consalidated in HMT's accounts and
classified as a MDPE. The shares in the
Comparny were subsaquently transferrad
by ASIL to the Solicitor for the Affairs of Her
Majesty's Treasury in its capacity as
norminea for HMT on 30 March 2021,

The Act enables those banks and building
societies, that choosea to poricipate, fo
tramsfer money from their dormant
accounts fo the Company and for surplus
funds to be distributed fo THLCF and then
arwards 1o good couses across the LK,
This is known as the Main Scheme.

Also available for Participants 1o join is the
Alternative Scheme, which enables anks
and building sociehes with balance sheet
asset values balow £7bn, to ufilise their
qualifying dormant accounts to tronsfer
an agread propartion of a dorrmont
account balance to the Company and
the remaining portion to one ar more
aligicle charities,

Both Schemes ensure that the right of
account holders fo reclaim their monay,
at any time, is protected in parpetuity by
transfaring the individual’s claim against
their bank or building society to RFL

The strategy of the Company is aligned fo
thee operational activities permitted undar
the Dormant Bonk and Building Society
Accounts Act 2008 and its articles of
association, it is permitted under the Act
and its articles of association to invast
funds and to defray administrative costs
and aother reasonable expensas,

REVIEW OF THE YEAR

During the year, the Company occepted
£89.0m (2019 £146.5m) of dormant
account manies from 146 of the 31 Main
Scheme participating UK barks and
building societies (2019 20 of 297, In total
the Company aoccepted the liability for
£1.5m (2019 £1.0m) of darmant account
monies from Alternative Scheme
Farticipants in the year, which under the
terms of the agreement translated to
£0.6m of dormant asset fransfers in 2020
(2019: £0.4rm).

A numier of reclaims were paid fo Main
and Alternative Scheme Participants
during fhe yvear, omaounting to £12.9m
(2019 £128m). Given thea limited reclaim
experience fo date, provisicning for future
reclaims remaing in lins with previous
wears, with an additional provision
recordead in the year of £36,.2m

(2019 £5%.2rm).

The Compary is run on o not-for-proht
basis and, accordingly, profit after tax was
£nil {2019 £nil). Net assets at the bolance
shieel date weare £73.7rm (20019 £73.7m).
The only disfribufions the Company is
permitted to make ara fo THLCF in support
of good couses.

Distributions paid for the year weare
£68.5m (2019 £71.8m). The Company has
approved further amounts of £20.3m in
2020 and £54.0m in February 2027, which
are available for immediate distibution
ter THLCF

2020 KEY
HIGHLIGHTS

u Banks and building societies
participating in the Scheme
transferrad a further £8%.6m fo
RAL in 2020, kringing the total fo
over £1.44bn since inception,

u We have paid £68.5m
and committed a further
£144.3m to TNLCF in support
of good causes,

@CGMMUHITT
FUND

l We welcomed Cambridge
Building Society as our second
participont fo the Alternative
Scheme, alongside R Raphael
and Son PLC and CIME Berhod
who joined the Main Scheme.

THE
CAMBRIDGE
Budding Sochity
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

During the year, the Board and its Committees have reviewed the
Company’s performance through key performance indicators ('KPIs"),
the results of which provide an overview of its Parficipants, stakeholders,
processes and financial strength.

NON-FINANCIAL KPIs

FINANCIAL KPIs

AMOUNTS RECEIVED
FROM PARTICIPANTS

£89.6m

(2019: £147.1m)

Ir 2020, Main Scheme transfers ane in line
with management's expectation, taking tatal
transfers since inception to more than
£1.44bn. We walcomed our second new
member fo the Alternative Scheme,

LIQUIDITY - CASH HELD

£342.1m

(2019: £329.9m)

We predominantly hold cash balances with
thie Bank of England, which provides a highly
liguid, secure position, with some cash being
el by owr Investment Manoger,

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

£73.7m

(2019: £73.7m)

The Board has determined that RFL holds
sufficient capital fo run the business in the
leng tarm.

OPERATING COSTS'

£3.1m

(2019: £2.9m)

The increase in operating costs reflects the
addifional business activities underiaken in
2020, These include support for the upfoke
in the Altermnative Scheme, lagal support on
reviewing cur ownership model, necessary
licizon with Government Departments and
the Boord Effectivenass Review, Annual
budgets are reviewed and approved by the

Board, with costs being regularty monitared.

1 Operaling costs excluda imestment
ranagement fees.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD

£350.4m

(2019: £353.7m)

Wa mairtain a highly liquid, secure position,
with maturing bonds and coupons
generated from the investmeant portfolio
being re-invested,

DISTRIBUTIONS PAID TO THE NATIONAL
LOTTERY COMMUNITY FUND

£68.5m

(2019: £71.8m)

Distributions of L68.5m were paid in the year,
toking cumulative distibutions poid fo dote
to £655.5m. An addifional £90.2m was
approved in 2020 together with o further
£854.0m in February 2021, Both amounts ars
available for immediate distribution.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW

SECTION 172 STATEMENT
Directors’ duty to RFL's wider
stakeholder base

RFLs unique stotus as a reclaim fund

is constituted in accordance with the
Dormant Bank and Building Society
Accounts Act 2008, The Directors of RFL
have a duty to act in a mannar that thay
consider in good foith will best ochieve
the Campany's purpossa,

The Board is ccutely aware of its
responsibilities to ansure the long-term
success of the Company, and to
damonstrate its alignment to the
Section 172 statement required by

the Companias Act 2004,

Thie Board has analysed the wider
stakeholder base and hos considerad
aach stakaholder as detailad below:

DORMANT BANK AND BUILDING
SOCIETY ACCOUNT HOLDERS

Sufficient funds must be owailable fo mest
reclaims of any dormant account
bolonces in perpetuity. As a result, careful
analysis, including exlensive work on
reclairn medelling, has been undertaken
by the Boord to ensure dormaont balance
transfars to RFL from Parficipants arg
reserved and invested prudently to meet
all future abligations. The Compary is
aweare of the impact of COVID-19 on
Businesses generally, and consideration
wias given to possible increases in recloim
rafes due to the potential inoncial impocts
af COVID-19, causing acoount holdars fo
seek their lost funds. We communicated
regulary with our Participants on this
matter during 2020 and are satisfied that
no trends were developing which might
impact on the curmant reclaim provision
and the modelling work being undertaken

SUPPORTING GOOD CAUSES

Our purpass is to unlock the patential of
domant assets fo enhance communifies
and ennch lives, which drives us to focus
on saaking to distibute excess funds via
THLCF. The pandemic in 2020 prevented
s from halding our Annual Event which
showcases some of the good causes
which have received funds from the
Darmant Asset Schema since our
inception. Nevertheless, we continued

te communicate the baenefits of the
Scheme through our quarterly newsletter
to Participonts and through the use of
social media in promoting the
beneficianes of the Scheme.

OUR PARTICIPANTS

We have regular communication with our
Parficipants, supporting tham in their moin
operational activities of fransfer and
reclaims. This includes, but is not limited to,
visits, the annual self-certification
quashonnaire, discussions regarding other
potential domant assets and knowladge
sharing for Scheme expansion, We provide
on-going support and assistance fo any
potential Porticipants ond new joiners to
btk the Main and Allemative Schames,

OUR PARENT

Thraughout 2020 and inta 2021, we hove
confinued to be supported by our previous
owner, Angel Square Investments Limited,
and our ultirmate parent, the Co-ocperafive
Group Ud, and have valued their halpful,
productive and progressive input info

the change in ownership of RFL. We are
grateful for their suppart since [FLs creation
and its advice through their ten years of
stewardship, Lote in September 2019, the
Offica for Mational Statistics classified RFL
as a MDPB for the purposes of statistical
analysis. A5 a result, RFL became a NDPR
owned by HMT which will continue to
operate indepandently as an Arms-Length
Body. We look forward fo working clasely
with our new parent as we embark on
Schame expansion.

OUR EMPLOYEES

RFL has only a small team af staff, with
saveral activities being outsourced fo third
parfies. Stoff engagement is strong, an
open culture is encouraged, and the
Boord supports management's investrmeant
in its workforce, providing suppart for
fraining and development. With the onset
of COVID-19, the team werne required fo
rnewve to fulltime working from horme; this
new way of working was embroced by

all team mambers with the business
canfinuing fo achieve its plans im 2020
RFL waas awarded Gold Investors in Peopls
status in 2019 which was re-accredited in
2020 ond has also been accredifed as a
Living Wage emplover.

¥ % INVESTORS

L Gold
%_& IN PEOPLE | °

meg
Wage

GOVERNMENT

The recommendation of the Dormont
Assets Commission o expand the Scheme
o other dormant asset classes has allowad
both the Boord ond monagement fo
engage with Government as a trusted
adviscr in the initial moves to progose new
asset classes from other industry sectors in
order fo develop the Scheme. During 2020,
fhe Government held o public consulfation
on exponding the Domant Asset Scheme.
I Jormuary 2021, iF published its response
o the consultation. This confirmed the
Government's infention to bring forward
Primary Legisiation to expand fhe Scheme
inte three new assat classes: Insurance
ond pensions: Investment and wealth
rnonagement; and Securties, We confinue
fo engage with DCMS and HMT o suppaort
development of Schems expansion.
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OUR REGULATOR

The Company operates in o regulated
financial services environment and is
subject to legislative and regulafory
requiremants, with ifs sole regulator being
the FCA. Cur Chief Executive maintains
regular contact with aur FCA supervisar
awer regulatery matters. The Board and
management hove put robust systems
and controls in place and regularly chack
that they are operating effectively to
ansura that the Company confinues to
aperate within its regulatory framework,

OUR SUPPLIERS

RFLs suppliers are cotegornsed by our
intarnal policies, which sat out the
relafionship approoach taken. RFL
undertakes regular reviews with specified
suppliers with particular emphasis on our
key suppliers, with whom we meestf fwice
yaarly o ensure that both suppliers and
RFL rernain satisfied with the service
arrangeaments, We maintain regular
contoct with cur suppliers with due
consideration being given to the Modearm
Slavery Act and Genaral Data Protaction
Regulation. Whilst the onset of COVID-19
impacted the tearm's atility to wark from
our office, it did not change the
intaractions with our suppliers and the
quality of service delivary.

ENVIRONMENT

We are committed fo managing our use of
resources and the resultant environmental
impact, We continue to focus on areas
that are most relevant to RFL, our people
and our suppliers. We will continue ta
review climaote change regulation and
adapt our operations where necessary fo
aensura we align to our purpose, mission
and values.

RISK MANAGEMENT
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company operafes in o regulated
ervircnment and is subject to legislative
and regulatory reguirerments, with the sala
regulator being fihe FCA, Within fhe
constraints of the Dormant Bank and
Building Society Accounts Act 2008, the
Boord is responsible for strotegy and for
ovarall corporate govemancs, which
includes ensuring that there are adequate
systerns of risk management and that the
lewel of capital hald is consistent with the
risk profile of the business,

The Boord is responsible for satting fhe
Compary's risk oppeatite and ensuring that
approprate risk manogement systems ara
in ploce, The Boord reviews the Compony’s
principal risks hroughout the year as part
of its rolling cgenda, adopting an
integrated approach to risk management
and regulary assessing the principal risks.
Throughout the yeor, RFL has monoged its
risks fo ansura that it complies with tha Act,

Whilst the Board refains oversight of risk
management, doy-to-day responsibility is
delegated to the Executive, including the
identification, evaluation and monitonng
of key risks facing the Company and the
implemeantation of Company-wide risk
managemeant processes and confrols.

The Executive is supported in this by the
Exacutive Risk Committes, which keeps the
effectiveness of the Company's risk
managemeant systems under review and
reports to the Board regulary on the results
of its raview. The ocourrences of any
materal contral isswes, serious accidents,
major commercial, financial or
reputational issues, of any new emerging
risks is reported fo the Board and Audif &
Risk Committes (AARC" as appropriale
on o fimely bosis.

HOW THE COMPANY MANAGES RISK

The Company has thres lines of delence
fhrough which it manages significant risks,
overseen by the Boord and AARC:

1st line: Risk ownership and control by the
business is part of doy-fo-doy operations
undar tha diraction of the Executive.

2nd line: The Company’s Risk and
Caomplionce function, under the direction
of the Chief Risk Officer ([CRO™), monitors
adherence o the procedures set aut by
the Execufive, assesses risk across the
business on o regular basis and provides
guidance ta fhe business on the
opplication of best proctice risk
rnonagement. It reparts on a regular bosis
o the Boord and AARC and the CRO has
direct access to the Chair of the AARC of
any fime.

3rd line: Independant assurance aver the
Campany's risk management, control and
QoVErmance procaesses is provided by the
Campany's internal audit service provider,
which hos o direct reporting line to AARC,

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

Tha Company's Enterprise Risk
Maonagement framework facilitates o
commaon, Company-wide approoch fo the
idantification, analysis, and assessment of
risks and fhe way inwhich they are
manoged, confrolled and monitored,

The principal risks focing the Company are:
1. RECLAIM RISK

Reclaim risk is the risk that the Company
does not retain sufficient funds fo meet
future reclaims in percetuity. The
Company's policy is to maintain prudent
pravisions for future reclaims to reflect the
longevity of the nsk of reclaim, The level of
reclaims is fgorously monitorad on an
ongoing bosis.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW

2. STRATEGIC AND BUSINESS RISK

Strategic and business risk arises from
changes fo the Company's businass,
specifically the risk of not being able to
carry out the business plan and desired
strategy. In a broader sense, stratagic risk is
the Company’'s exposure to o wide range
of macro-aeconamic, geo-political,
banking, regulatory and other external
risks, particularly relating o dormant
accounts. Tha overall risk level incraases
when o number of risks combine together
at a single point in fime. In o narow sense,
business risk is the risk that the Company
suffers losses becouse income falls oris
wolatile relative fo the fixed cost base. The
Board and Executive continually consider
the impact on RFLs Strategic Objactives
from any Brexit transiticon perod oufcomes
following its recent completion.

3. REGULATORY RISK

Thie Comparny operabes in a reguloted
emvironment and is subject o significant
legislative and regulatory reguirements,
having o unigue clossification of "Domnant
Account Fund Operatar, It is regulated by
the FCA.

The Company also manitars the following
risks:

4. OPERATIONAL RISK

Oparational risk is defined within the
Compary as tha risk of loss resulfing from
inodeguate or foiled internal processes,
people and systems, or extemal events.
This encomposses the effectivenass of risk
managemeant techniques and controls o
minirmise these losses. Examples include
intarnal and external froud, loss of key
parsonnel, [T systern or software failures
and external events over which the
Company has limited control such as
terrcrist attacks and floods. These
considerations include the risk of cyber-
crime, although exposure is limited as REL
retains no customer data.

5. LIQUIDITY AND FUNDING RISK

Liquidity and funding risk is the risk that
cash may net be available to pay
obligations when due af a reasonable
cost, The Comporny’s palicy is to ensure it
has sufficient funds fo Tull licbilites as thay
fall due. Liquidity and funding risk is
mitigated thraugh effective cash
managemeant. The Cormpany operotes
within a strict investment mandate, which
ansures that, at all times, a substantial
proportion of the Company’s assets are
hield in a highly liquid form.

6. CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of finoncial loss from a
countarparty’s failure to settle finoncial
obligations as they fall due. Credit
expasures arise in the nomal course of the
Company's business, princigally from cash
depacsits, and from the Compory’s
imvastmants, Investmeant decisions ars
made in line with a strict investrment
mandate in order to manage fhe
Company's exposure fo cradit risk,
Investments comprise fixed income
irvestrmants, with initial purchases being
restricted to investrments graded no lower
than A-

7. MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the Company
tokes through exposure to the effects of
fluctuations in the pravailing levels of
market interest rates on its financial
position and cash flows. Inferest income
may decrease as a result of such changes.
The Compary has limited exposure fo
market risk as its fixed income investmants
are held until they mature,

The Strafegic report on pages 4 fo 20is
approved by the Direchors.

ADRIAN SMITH
Chief Executive

20 April 2021
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GOVERNANCE

INTRODUCING OUR BOARD

A DILIGENT, KNOWLEDGEABLE AND RESPONSIELE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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OUR COMMITTEES

AND COMMITTEE
CHAIRS

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities
to the four Committees below, each of which has
written terms of reference covering the authority
delegated fo it by the Board. Each of these
Committees has a rale in ensuring the
affectivenass of the Company.

The Audit ond Risk Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities far the financial
reporting process. systems of infernal contraol, risk
managemeant, the intermal capital adequacy
process, and infemal and extermal audit, s remit
also includes matters relating to whistleblowing
and complionce with opplicable regulations and
legislation. including the Dormmant Bank and
Building Society Accounts Act 2008

The Investment Committee supports the Board
and the Chiel Executive in the development and
implementation of the RFL Investment Strafegy.

It also menitors the ongeing performance and
cormpliagnca of tha nominated Investmeant
Manoger and Custodion and ensures adherence
o the Board agreed investmeant maondate.

The Nomination Committees leads the process for
Board appointmeants, ensuring a rigarous search
and selection process based on its evaluation of
tha balance of skills, knowledge and experiencs
required on the Board,

The Remuneration Committes considers and
appraves the remuneration armngements for
the Chair, the Executive Director and Senior
WManagamant. In line with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, Mon-Executive Directaor
rermuneration is a matter which is agreed by
the whole Board, following recommendation
from RFLs Momination Committes,

Find out more on page 24

GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK
BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Audit und Rlsk Cnmmlﬂee
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GOVERNANCE

THE BOA

BOARD COMPOSITION

MALE

FEMALE

COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP KEY

Committes chair
A Audit and risk committes
I Investmeant committes
N Momination committes
R Remunaeration committes

1 JANE HANSON JP B4 (Hong), FCA
Chair

Appointed: 7 Cclobar 2011
Experience: Jars joinaed tha Board in 2017 and
servad os Chair of the Audit ond Risk Committes
prior fo being appointed as Board Chair on
18 August 20014, A Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants with over 25 years
experence in finonciol servicas. Jone |s also a
Mon-Executive Direcion and Chair of fhe Board
Risk Cormmittens af Direct Ling Insurance Grou
ple Mon-Exgculive Direcior of Williarm Hill ple,
Wedsh Woater ple and Rothasay Life ple, Jona is
also the Honorary Traasunar at the Disasters
Ermargency Committes. Her pravious executive
rades include Risk and Gowernance Director at
Aviva ple., Jane s also a Magistrate.
Committees: N R

2 ADRIAN SMITH nBA
Chief Executive

Appointed: 16 November 2010

Experience: Adrian joined the Boord in 2010,

He wias presvicushy a senior leader at Britannia
Building Society, Bank of Irelond and Brigtol &
‘West Bullding Society and a former Mor-Executive
Direchar of Mutual Plus Lid, Adricn wos responsibbe
far leading the propect 1o estailish Reclaim Fund
Lt dduririg 2009070 ard wias subxsacguantly
appaonted as Chiaf Exaculive. Adrion is also a
mamber of the Dormant Assats Advisory Board.
Committess: 1

3 KATHERINE GARMER E5C (HONS), A4
HNon-Executive Director

Appointed: 17 Docoemba 2018

Experience: Kalharing joinad the Board in 2018

A Fellow of the Institube of Actuaries since 1997,
she is currenily the Chiaf Exacutive Officer of Sun
Life Fimancial of Canoda in the UK and o member
of its Board of Directors, Katherine started her
employment with Sun Life Fnoncial of Canada in
2008 and held vanous positions before taking the
rode of Thied Executive Officer im 2013, Pricr 1o this
Katbvzrineg wos amployed by HEBC, whane ber
radas inchuded, Heod of Openations, Head of Lifa
Insurancs and also Fnanca Director of the Dublin
life company and Daputy Head of Investments in
the UK.

Commiteess: A |

4 JAMES HARDIE M4 (HONS), MBEA
Mon-Executive Director

Appointed: 2 July 2015
Exparience: Jomes joinad the Board in Juby 20015
os an indapandant Mon-Exacutive Director and s
Chair of the Investment Committee. James is
Darzctor of Imvestment Management and
Trawsury at Direct Line Insuronce Group ple.
Commitiees: 1 A

g GLYN SMITH M4, Foa
Senior Independent Director

Appointed: 4 Fetruary 2015

Experience: Slyn jcinad the Board in Ferwary
2015 and was appointed Senicr Independant
Derector in 2020, He is also Chair of the Audit
ond Risk Committes, A chartered accourtant
with over A0 yeors' experiendce in finoncial
services, Ghr hald a number of senior executie
pasifiorns ab Barckays Bank and was Groug
Finance Director of Partman Building Sociaty.

He iz curranthy also a Mon-Exacutive Director
and Chair of the Audit Commities of The
Co-aperative Bank plc and Chair of the West
Bromwich Bullding Society Pension Trustees. He
his held o number of pukbiic and privote sector
Mon-Executive Direcharships, includ ng Domestic
& Fenaral Group, Soventny Building Sochety
Shroud & Swindon Building Socialy, FOO Sarvicas
and Covant Gardan Markat Authority,
Commitiees: & N R

& JENNY WATSON CBE Ba, M4
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: 3 Jaruary 2019

Experience: Jenny joimed thi Badond in 2019,
Shez i Chair of fhe House of 51 Barmalbas, o
sociol purpose businass in London's Soho and
of GAMSTOR A prensous Chair of the Elactoral
Commission and Equal Opportunities
Commission, she started her early coreer

In the not for profit secton She ls cumenthy

o Man-Exgcutive Director on the Boord of

Tz Fimgincicl ﬂﬁepﬂrllr‘lg Caigmcil
Commitlees: & N R
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JANE HANSON
Chair

KATHERINE GARMER
Hon-Executive Director

GLYN SMITH
Senior Independent Director
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ADRIAN SMITH
Chief Executfive

a
JAMES HARDIE
Non-Executive Director

.

JEMHY WATSOMN
Non-Executive Director
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GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company voluntarily
follows the spirit of the UK
Corporate Governance Code
("the Code") as a way of
providing assurance fo
stakeholders around our
operations and control
framework. Although,
technically, the Code only
applies to premium listed
companies, the RFL Board
continues to firmly believe in
the benefits of good
governance practices,

In 2019 an independant review highlighted
that the RFL Boord operated effectively with
a highly skilled board of Directors, ably led
by the Chair, The review also emphasised
that the Commitleas weara well run, with
expenenced Chairs and that staff were
copable, led by o committed Chief
Executive. Some minar improvements weng
recommendsad and in 2020 the
Compary’s Chiel Risk Officer commancad
a review of the Company's govemance
arrangaments, which was presentad to the
Board in early 2021. The purpose of the
review i5 to enhance, improve and
streamline curent govermanae
arangements without jecpardising the
strong governance hal i curently in
ploce. Further refinements to aur
governance arangaments will be mode
as part of the transition to our new owners.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
OF THE BOARD

To ensure the successful delivery of the
Compary's strategy, the Boord and its
Committess have bean astablishad with
an appropriate balance of relevant skills,
seclor knowledge, expenance,
independence and diversity to enable the
Directors fo exercise their duties and
responsibilities effectively. The Board
currently includes three female Directors
(80%). and remains cormmitted to
furthering its skills and diversity.

The Directors are committed fo leading
and controlling the Company effectively.
The Board is responsible for the success
of the Company within a framework

of contrels, which enabxles risks to be
ossessed and managed. It is responsible
for setting strategy, maintaining the policy
and decision-making framawork in which
this strategy is implemented, ensuring
that the necassary financial and human
resourcas are in ploce to mest sfrategic
aims, meniterng performonce against
key fimancial and non-inancial indicators,
overseeing the system of risk manogement
and setting values and standards in
governance matters.

The Board is accountable for the carsful
diraction of the Comparny’s affairs, in
poarticular the safe stewoardship of funds
held to meet future rechaims by domant
account holders and the optimisaficn
of payments 1o The National Lotary
Cormmunity Fund for good causes.

Under the Comparny’s goavaermancs
arangements, certain key decisions
can only be made by the Board and
may not be delegated fo management.
The matters reserved to the Boord are
sat out inoa formal Schaedula of Matters
Reserved to the Board

The Board manages these matters at its
regular Board mesfings. It met seven times
curing 2020,

The assignment of responsibilities between
the Chair and the Chief Executive is
documeantad to ensure a clear division
betweaen running the Boord and the
Executive responsibility far running the
Campany's business.

This yaar saw tha retirament of Adrian
Cales from the Board. He served as Senicr
Independent Directorn, a post he had held
since Decemiber 2014, We are grateful to
Adrian for his valuable confribution over the
past fen years. Glyn Smith was subsequeantly
oppointed as the Senior Independent
Directar in October 2020 and is available

fo employees and stakehclders if they
have concems that are unresolved after
confact through the normal channels ar
where such contact would nof be
apgropricate.

Mark Summerfield alsa left the Board in
2020, Mark joined tha Board in April 2015
as 4 shareholder appointed Mon-Execufive
Director, We are grateful o have benefited
frorm his considerable skills and experience
over the last five years. Following the sale
of RFL to HMT in March 2021, Dominic
Kendal-Ward, o shareholder appointed
Meon-Exacutive Director also left the Board.,
We were also grateful fo have benefited
from his knowladge and expertise as we
fransitiored to our new cwnar.

Tha aggregate emoluments of the
Directars of Reclaim Fund Lid for the year
were £445k (2019 £512k). The reduction
follows a pariod of averlap of ratinng and
joining Mon-Executive Directors in 2019
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BOARD MEETINGS

The agenda for each Boord maeting is sat
by the Chair in consultation with the Chief
Executive and Compoany Secretary and

iz informed by o two-year rolling agenda.
This sets the framewark for Boord meetings
and seeks o ensure that each meaeling
covers an appropriate range of fopics and
that, aver the two-year penod, the Board
covers its whole ramit. The rolling agenda
is reviewed ot each Board meefing so that
all Directors are aware of agenda items for
forthcoming meetings.

Board and Commities papers are
distributed at least one week in advance
of meatings. This pravides the oppartunity
for Directors to prepare fully for meetings.
The minutes of all meetings are availoble
to all Directors. Tablets hove been pravided
to Directors to provide oll Boord popers,
including additional supparing material,
solely in electronic format, This is mone
efficient for Directors, more environmentally
sound and more secura fhan providing
Board documentation in poper format,

Thene is regular communication between
the Directars, the Chair, the Chief Executive
and the Company Secratary betwaen
meetings. In light of the move to remote
waorking and the restrictions on travel due
to the COVID-19 pandemic during 2020,
the majority of the Board and Committes
meetings werne held remotaly, vio video
conference, which hos proved o be
successul.

When o Director is unable to attend Board
ar Committes meeatings, issues can ba
raised with the Chair. Communication
batwesn Mon-Executive Directars and
managemeant is encouraged between
meetings.

REGULAR BOARD BUSINESS

At every quarterly meeting. the Board
receivas reports fror the Chief Exacutive
and the Chief Risk Officer, as well as key
performance indicatons and an update
from the Company Secretary. The Chairs of
the four Baard Committess (Audit and Risk,
Investrment, Momination and Rermuneration)
also present a summary of issues raised,
decisions made, and recommandations
proposed af recent Commiftee meetings.
Thesa are noted and discussad further by
the Boord as required.

SPECIFIC AREAS OF FOCUS

I addition to covearing thea regular business
discussed above, Board meeating agendas
are developead in line with the Compary’s
strategic prionties, regulatory trends and
other external foctors. A rolling agenda of
iterns for Board consideration and approval
is maintgined and regulary updaoted.
During 2020, the COVID-19 pandeamic wos
a key focus for the Board, fogether with the
related impact on not only the Compory’s
investmants but alse the Company's
employees and other stakeholders,
including the wellbsing of the workforce
following the move fo remaote-working.

A direct conseguence of the COVID9
pondemic was the decision fo accelerate
the opproval of the 2020 distribution to fhe
Mational Lettery Community Fund, This
decision was made os the Boord thought it
important to provide whot support it could
to the national effort fo provide urgenthy
needed funding to the voluntary sectorin
response fo the CSOVID-19 pandamic.

During the year, there has been
considerable focus on the davelopmeant
of the Company’s communications
strafegy which has seen o re-launch of
our website and an incredse in our sacial
media presence. The Company provided
its cown response to the public consultation
on the proposed exponsion of the
Daormant Assets Schame to which the
Government published its response in early
2021, The Board is proud fo be namead as
thie Scheme’s only intended authorised
reclaim fund.

I addition, the Board discussed, infer alia,
new investment opporfunities, the new
awnarship madel, the Company’s

reclaim provisioning policy, risk
management and govermance matters,

a post-implementaticn review of the

new IT system, policies and procedures,
approgriate performance measuras and
corporofe governance, As the Board is
committed lo ervirenmental consideratians,
it is clso monitoring any climate-related
disclosuraes it may consider appropriate or
desirable fo make, althouwgh it is curantly
exciuded from any obligations to do so
aithar undar the Codea or FCA requirements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated certain specified
responsizilities o the four Caommittess
listed below, each of which has written
terms of reference covering the authority
delegated fo it by the Boord. Eoch of these
Committess has a role in ensurng the
effectivenass of the Company.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE ('AARC")

The AARC receives reports from fhe
Campany's internal and external auditors,
the Chief Risk Officer and the Risk and
Complionce funchions. Its remit includes
rnatters relating fo compliance with
opplicable regulations and legislafion,
including the Dormoant Bank and Building
Society Accounts Act 2008, the
effactivensss of systerms of infermal control,
risk management, the infermal capital
odequocy assessment process, oversight of
intermal and external audit, whistieblowing
ond the Annual Report and Accounts,

Dwuring tha year the AARC comprised:

= Ghyn Smith (Chairy
+ Katherine Garner
= Jomes Hardie

+ Jenry Watson

The AARC met five times during 2020,

At each meeting, the AARC receaived
reports from the Chief Risk Officer and

the infermal auditors, including reports on
Iindividual audits undeartaken. These reports
irformed the Committea’s views when
considering the annual assessment of fhe
odequacy of the Company’s systerns of
intermal confral, As in pravious years, the
AARC reviewed the Annual Report and
Accounts in defail, tegether with the
external auditar's report tharaon, The
AARC poid particulor attention to process
arnd confrol issues and considered key
areas of accounting judgement, with
particular emphasis on the provision for
reclaims of dormant account balances.
The Committes also considerad the
Going Concern and Viability Statemeant
ossessment and reviewed the impaoct of
the new accounting standard for leases,
Tha AARC also considerad the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic and the possible
longevity of risks associatad with it
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GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT confinuec

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE ('AARC")

Thie Committes safisfied itself that the
Annual Report ond Accounts, taken

as a whole, ware fair, balonced and
understondakle and provided fhe
infarmation necessary for stakeholders
to assess the performance, strategy and
business model of the Company,

Thie AARC also reviewed the annual plans
af the extermal auditors, the intemal
audifors and the Risk function and
undertook its biennial review of the
affectiverass of infemal audit,

In addition to the regular reports refered
to above, the AARC considered current
and projected risk and capital positions
and reparts on key sk areas bath from
management and external experts. It
also conducted an annual review of
Farficipont agency agreameants and
considered the occounting and regulafory
implications of a revised reclaim model,
Thie Committes also received reports on
RFLs whistleblowing arrangements, The
Committee met twice with each of the
internal and extermal auditors, without
the presence of managemsant.

The Board is satished that af least one
mambar af the AARC has recent and
relevant finoncial experience with
competence in accounting and auditing,
and that the Committee os a whole has
competence relevant to the sechorin
which it operatas.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committes supparts

tha Boord and the Chief Executive in the
development and implemeantation of

the RFL Inviestrnent Strategy and provides
assurance to fhe Board with regard to the
ongaing parformonce and caomplionce
of the nominated Investrment Manager
and Custodion with the Boord agreed
investmant mandates and requiremants.

During the year the Committee comprised;

+ Jormes Hardie (Chair)

+ Adnian Coles (until 30 September 20200
+ Katherine Garnar

« Adrian Smith (from & April 20207

The Committes met nina fimeas during
2020, This was more frequent than in 2019,
as the Committes deemed it necessarny
inorder to closely monitor fhe evolving
economic situation ansing due to the
COVID-19 pandemic.

During the year, the Investment
Commitfes’s activities also included
consideration of the pofential impoct of
Brexit, the possibility of negative intarast
rates, and credit rafings. It also regularly
reviewed the performances and reparting
of the Investment Manager. Early in the
year the Board approved the Committea’s
recammendation for a further £50m
investment with the Investment Monager
although, in light of the econamic
uncertainties following the emergence
of the COVID-1? pandemic, only a small
portion of this sum was invested, with the
remainder being held in cosh until there
was less economic uncertainty.

NOMIMATION COMMITTEE

The Momination Committes leads the
proceass for Board appointments, ensuring
a ngorous search ond selection process
based on ifs evaluation af the balanca of
skills, knowledge and experience required
on the Board.

Dwiring the year the Committee comprised:

+ Jone Hanson (Chain)

= Adrian Coles (until 30 September 2020
+ Glyn Smith

+ Jenmy Watson (from 19 February 2020y

The Committes did not meet in 2000,

It wios considerad important for the whaole
Board to consider changes to Committes
membership and the extension of Board
fenure, and these were duly addressed by
the whaole Board this yiear.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Tha Remunermation Committes considers
ond approves the remuneration
arrangements far the Chair, the Executive
Director and senicr manogement. In line
with the UK Corporate Governance Code,
Mon-Exacutive Director remunerafion is a
matter which is ogreed by the whaole
Board, following recommendation from
RFLs Momindafion Committes.

During the year the Commities comprisad:

= Adrian Coles (Chairy (until 23 April 20200
+ Jane Hanson

= Glyn Smith

+ Jenny Waoatson (Chair) (from 23 Agril 20200

Tha Committes met four times during 2020,

During the year, the Rermunaralion
Caommittes reviewed the 2020 performance
and bonus awards for the Chiet Executive,
sanior managemant and employvees

ond confinued its work on reviewing

the framework for the employes bonus
scheme, faking into consideration the
COVID-19 pandemic and the anticipated
Impact on the Caompany's business.

28 Reclaim Fund Lid Annucl Report and Accounts 2020



ATTENDANCE

The following table sets out the numiser of Board and Boord Committes meetings each Director wos eligible to attend (number in
brackets) along with the actual meetings aottended during 2020,

Irvestment Momination  Remuneration
Directors Full Board AARC Committes Committes Committes
Adrian Coles 5(5) - & (8) - 3
Katherine Gamer 7N 5(3) (" - -
Jone Honson 77 - - - 40
James Hardig 7N S(5) 8 (%) - -
Dorminic Kendal-Ward 57 - - - -
Adrian Smith 7N - FE )] - -
Glyn Smith 7N 5(5) - - 4
Mark Summerfield 7N - - - -
Jenny Watson 7N 50 - - 40

PROVISION OF ADVICE TO DIRECTORS

There is an agreed procadura by which
Diractors may toke independeant
profassional advice at the Company's
expense in furtheronce of their duties.

TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Chair and the Board activaly
encourage the ongoing professional
development of the Directars, Training
sessions had alse been built inte the Board
and Commiftee agendos for 2020 but,
given that the first plannad fraining doy
coincided with the start of fhe COVID-19
pandamic in the UK, it was decided to
postpone this session. A fraining session on
cyber security wos held in November,
Further training sessions (including on tha
development of exponded dormant
assels) are planned for 2021,

BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEE EVALUATION

Thie Board has agreed to underfake o
rewienw of its effectivenass and that of its
Committees on a two-year cycle,
alternating between a high level review
and a full independent review, bath of
which are completed every four years.

An independent revies was carried out
in 2019 ond, in early 2020, Independeant
Audit formally presented its findings

to the Board, concluding thot the RFL
Board operated effectively with a highly
skilled Board, ably ked by the Chair.

The Boord confinues to review and monitor
its effectivenass and fo consider the minos
areqs the report suggested for improvement,
such as simplification of our govemance
amrangements, The Board intends to run

o self-evaluation review in 2021,

THE SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

The Secretary is professionally qualified
and iz responsible for advising the Board
through the Chair on all govermance
mattars. The Directors have acceass to
the odvice and services of the Secretary,

The Arficles of Association and fihe
schedule of Matters Reserved to the Boord
far decision provide that the appointment
and remaval of the Secretary is a matter for
the full Board, Vistra Company Secretariss
Ltd was Secratary fhroughout the year.

OWHNERSHIP

RFL is ultimmctely owned by fhe Trecsury
Solicitor s nominee for HW Treasury,
following the acquisition from the
Co-opercfive Group Lid, vio its subsidiary
Angel Square Investments Limited, on

30 March 2021.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The performance of the external auditors
is regularly monitored by the AARC to
ansure it meets the needs of the Company.

RFL has a non-oudit work policy that
establishes the principles by which it is
oble fo oppoint the external and internal
cuditars for non-oudit services. The palicy
dlso establishes o framework governing the
process by which non-audit services are
approved. The AARC reviews this policy on
o friennial bosis and it is due for review in
2021, Mo non-audit services ware provided
by the external ouditors during 2020,

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit function is an
independant funchion, which reports to
fhie AARC. Its primary roke is fo provide
assurance over the odeguacy and
aeffactivencss of the infermal control
framework including risk monogerment
practices.

Imternal oudit seeks to discharge the
responsiciities set down in its charter by
campleting a risk based intermal audit plan,
that is approved by the AARC on an annual
basis. The plan sets out o framework for the
review of business processes and ensures
fhict key businass risks are effectively
manoged by key controls

Deloitta LLP provided infernal audit services
fo the Company throughout the year and
prepared a report on the governance
arrangements under the new remaote
working regime,
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INTERMAL AUDIT cortimuec

The AARC carries out o farmal review of the
effectivenass of the outsourced infemcl
audit function every two vears, The next
farmal review of the internal audit function
will be conducted in 2021 and, as such, no
formal review was carmed oul in 2020,
Internal audit also acts as a source of
constructive advice and best practice,
assisting senior managerment with its
responsibility fo improve the processes

by which business risks are identified

and managed.

Intarnal audit reports are submitfed to, and
significont issues arising are considerad at,
tha AARC,

THE LEADERSHIP TEAM

It is the responsibility of fhe leadership
team to implement the strategic objectives
agreed by the Board, The leadership team,
led by the Chief Executive, s responsible
for the doy-te-day manoagement of the
Comparny,

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board ond Executive monogement
have the primary responsibility for
identifying the key business risks facing
the organisation,

Internal contrals are the activities
undertaken by manageament. the Board
and afher parfies to enhance risk
management and increase the probakbility
that established objectives and goals

will be achieved. The Board has overall
rasponsibility for the Caompany's systam

aof infernal controls which gims to ensure
effective and efficient operations,

quality of infernal and external reporting,
safeguording of the Company’s ossets
and compliance with kaws and regulations.
Thie Board recognises that any system

can only be designed to manage rather
than eliminate risks and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenal misstaterment ar loss.

The risk managament framework
includes an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks and has been in ploce for
the whole of the year under review and
up fa the date of the approval of the
Annual Regort and Accounts,

A Conflicts of Inferest Policy is in place to
ensure the independence of Directors and
the managament of potential conflicts

VIABILITY STATEMENT

The Directors’ confirmation that they have
adopted the going concem basis in
preparing the Annual Report and
Accounts is set out on page 31.

In addition to performing o review of the
going concern status of the Comparny,
the Directors hove also, in the spint of the
Corporate Governance Coda, assassad
its prospects over the pericd to

3 December 2023,

The Compary was criginally established
as an authonsed reclaim fund under the
Financial Services Authority (FSA, now
FCAT Regulating Reclaim Funds Policy
Statemant (FS09/12) and is required fo
produce liguidity aond copital forecasts
that are considered by the AART and
approved by the Board annually.

Liguidity and copital managaement
forecasting are a key part of the risk
management fromeawork of RFL and
incorporate stress and scenario fests
designed to produce g comprehensive
assassmant of curent and projectad
liquidity and capital positions. The process
assists RFL in evaluating, over the period to
31 December 2023, the key known risks fo
which itis exposed ond the levels of copital
and other financial resources that should
ke maintained o sofeguard the liguidity
and copital positions of the business af all
times, including during a stress scenario.
Realistic scenarios arg developed with
actuaral support whereby plausible
economic, regulatory, and technalogical
devalopments are modelled to raflect a
substantial fall in fransfers into the Scheme
and an increase in reclaim rates. As part
of the stress testing the scenarios foke into
consideration amaounts already committed
for distribution by RFL, and consider the

additional costs of administering such
large reclaims. Additionally, noting the
impact of COVID-19 on businesses
genarally, consideration was given fo o
possible increase in reclaim rofes due fo
the potential inancial impacts of COVID-19
causing account holders to seek their lost
funds. A reverse strass test exarcise was
dlso performed. This test involved an
ossassment of the extent fo which reclaim
ratas would need to increase balone the
Caompany would be unable to meet
liczhailities s thay fall due, The Directors
concluded that the likelihood of such a
scenana ocourmng was extremely remaote,

The Boord has a number of mifigaofing
actions that it could use to oddress any
liguidity shartfalls, the mast significont
being amending the fiming and amount
of assurmed distributions which is in line
with the Arficles of the Compary which
determines that the Board has tolal
discretion over such matters.

The Board has also considersd the legal
forrn of the Campany over the assessment
periad in light of the change in ownership,
Late in Septembar 2019, the ONS classified
RFL as o MDPE for the purposes of statistical
analysis, with ownership of RFL passing
fo HMT on 30 March 2021, The Board

has received coraspondence from

fhe Economic Secratary to the Treasury
of HMT's infention for RFL to remain
operationally independant under

its new status. The Board is therefore
confident that its discration as regards
e timing and amount of distributions
will remain unchanged,

Baszed on the 2020 results of the liquidity
ond capital management forecasting,
and the assessment af the Company's
legal form, the Directors hove o recsonable
expactation that the Campany will b2

able fo continue in operaticn and meet

its habilities as they fall due over the penod
to 31 Decambar 2023.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

JANE HANSON
Chair

20 April 2021
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To ensure the successful delivery
of the Company's strategy, our
Board consists of Directors with
a wide range of relevant skills,
knowledge and experience.

Thie composifion of the Board during
the year is set out in the Corporate
governance rapaort on poges 24 and 25.

EMPLOYEES

Thie average nurmber of emplovees
during 2020 was ten (2019 fen).

The Company is responsibla for
recruitment of its own staff, It welcomes
diversity and aclively promoles a policy
and practice of equality of opportunity
far all stalf regardless of age. disability,
efhinicity, gender, religion or belief, or
sexual orientation

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fnancial risk managemeant objectives can
b found in the Rsk Management nate fo
the Finoncial Stotements on poge 55,

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Sofar as the Directors are aware, there is
na relevant audit information of which the
Compony’s auditors are unoware, aond the
Diractors have takan all requisite steps to
make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that

the Campany's auditors are aware of

that informotion.

A statement by the Directors s to their
responsibiliies for preparing the Annual
Report and Accounts is included in the
statement of Directors’ responsibilities on
page 32,

The Directars of the Carmpany during the
YT wiare!

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Jane Hanson (Chair)

Adrian Coles (Senior Independeant Director,
resignad 30 Septernber 2020y

Katherine Garner

Jarmes Hardig

Dorminic Kendal-Ward

(resignead 30 March 2081)

Glyn Smifih (oppointed Senior Independent
Director 23 Al 20200

Mark Summearfiald

(resigned 2 December 2020)

Jenmy Watson

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Adrian Smith (Chief Executive)

DISTRIBUTIONS

Under the Dormant Bank and Building
Society Accounts Act 2008, the only
distributions the Company is permitted
to make are to TMLCF. £48.5m of
distribufions were paid to The MNational
Lottery Community Fund during the year
(20719 £71.8m).

Mo dividend districutions were made to
the current parent, the Treasury Solicitor
for the Affairs of Har Majesty's Treasury in
its capacity as nominee for HMT, nor cur
previaus parent, ASIL, as this is not
permitied by fhe Act

GOING CONCERN AND
VIABILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions within the
Corporate Governance code, the Directors
have made o voluntary assessment of the
viability of the Company. The Viability
Statement, which supports the Going
Concem basis, is included in the risk
management sechicn of the Corporate
Governance Report,

The Directors hove considerad the
Company's business activities together
with its fimancial position and the factors
likely to affect its future development and
peronmance,

In particular, the Directars hove given
careful consideration fo

+ The expacted cash outlows compared
to the available cash and liquid assets in
a normal and stressed scenario; this
includes consideration of realistic
scenarnos whereby plausible economic,
regulatory, and fechnological
developments are modelled to reflect o
dramatic fall in fransfers into the Schame
and an increqse in reclaim rates.

+ The impact of COVID-19 on businesses
genarally; consideration was given fo
o possible increase in reclaim rates
due o the potential inancial impoacts
of COVID-19 causing occount holders
to seek their lost funds

+ The legal form of the Company in light
of the change in ownership.

Bosed on the above and nating the
considerable cash headroom even under
recsonable stress, the Directors balieve fhoat
fhie Company will be able to meet liakilities
as they fall dus for o period of one yaar
frarm the date of approval of the Financial
Staterments and therefore consider it
approprate to prapare the Fnancial
Stoferments on a going concern Dosis,

CHARITAELE AND POLITICAL
DONATIONS

Mo charitabls or political donations were
rnade during the yaar (2019 £nil).

MATTERS COVERED IN THE
STRATEGIC REPORT

All moandatony disclosures which the Direcions
consider to be of srategic impartance ane
disclosed in the Strategic report,

AUDITORS

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies
Act 2004, the auditors will be deamed fo
be reappointed and Emst & Young LLP will
therefore continue in offica.

By order of the Board

ADRIAN SMITH
Chief Executive

20 April 2021

Reclairm Fund Lid
Registered numiber: 07344884
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GOVERNANCE

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

IN RESPECT OF THE STRATEGIC REPORT, THE DIRECTORS™ REPORT
AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for
preparing fhe Strategic report,
the Directors’ report and the
Financial Staterments in
accordance with applicable
low and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors fo
prepare the Annual Report and Accounts
for each fincncial year. Under that law, the
Diractors have elected fo prepare the
Annual Report and Accounts in
accordance with International Accounting
Standards in confarmity with the
Companies Act 2006,

Under company law, the Directors must not
approve the Annual Report and Accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the stafe of affairs of
the Company and of the profit or loss of
the Campany for that pariod.

In preparing the Annual Report and
Accounts, the Direclors are reguired to:

+ select suitoble accounting policies in
accordance with A5 8 Accounting
Policies, Chonges in Accounting
Eztirmates and Errors and then apply
them consistenthy:

+ make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reascnable, relevant
and reliable;

« present information, including
accounting policies, in o manner that
providas relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandakle information;

+ provide addifional disclosures when
complionca with the specific
requiremants in International Financial
Reparting Standards ('IFRS") is
insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and
conditions on the Compary’s financial
position and financial perfarmance;

« in respect of the Annual Report and
Accaounts, state whather Infematicnal
Accounting Standards in conformity with
the Companies Act 2006 hove been
followsad, subject to any material
departures disclosed ond explained in
tha Annual Report and Accounts, and

= prepore the Annual Report and
Accounts on the going concarm basis
unless it is appropriate fo presurne that
the Company will not continue in
business.

The Directars ara responsitle for keeping
odequate occounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the
Campany's fransactions and disclose with
reqscnable occuracy of any time fhe
financial position of the Company and
enakle them fo ensure that the Financial
Staterments comply with the Companies
Act 2006, They are also responsitle for
safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hance for faking recsonable steps for
fhe prevention and detection of froud and
othar iregularities,

Under applicable United Kingdom low

and regulations, the Directors are also
responsile for preparing o Strategic report
and Directors” report that comply with that
lorw and those regulations. The Directorns
are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corparate and financial
inforrmation included on the Company’s
website,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RECLAIM FUND LTD

OPINION

We hove audited the Financial Statemants
of Reclaim Fund Lid for the vear ended

3 December 2020 which comprise the
Incame statemant, Statemeant of
comprehensive income, Stofement of
financicl position, Statement of cash fows,
Statement of changes inequity and the
related notes 1 to 22, including a summary
of significant accounting policies. The
fimancial reparting framework that has
bean applied in their pregaration is
applicable low and Infermaticnal
Accounting Standards in conformity with
the requirerments of the Companies

Act 2006

In our opinion, the Financial Statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the
Comparny's affairs as at 31 Decembear
2020 and of ifts result for the year then
arnded;

= hove been propery preparad in
accordanca with International
Accounting Standards in conformity with
the reguirements of the Companies Act
20068, and

* hove been prepared in accordonce
with the requiremeants of the Companies
Act 2006,

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in occordance
with Intermaticnal Standards on Auditing
(UK) (1545 (UK)) and applicable loaw. Our
responsibiliies under those standards are
furthier described in the Auditar's
responsibiliies for the audit of the Financial
Statermants section of cur report. We are
independeant of the Company in
accordance with the ethical regquirements
that are relevant to our audit of the
Financial Statements in the UK, including
the Finoncial Repaorting Council's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfiled cur other
athical responsibilities in occordance with
these requirements

We balieve that the audit evidence we
have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion,

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

In auditing the Financial Stotements, we
have concluded that the Directors” use of
the going concem basis of accounting in
the preparation of fhe Financial Stotements
is appropriafe.

Bosed on the work we hove performed,

we hove not identified any material
uncertainties relating fo events ar
conditions that, indvidually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the
Compary’'s ability to continue as a going
concarn for a perod of bealve months from
when the Financial Statements are
authorised for issue.

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities
of the Directors with respect to going
cancarn dra described in the relevant
sections of this report, However, becouse
nat all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement is nof o
guarantes as to the Company’s ability to
cantinue as o going cancern.

OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report
and Accounts, ather than the Financial
Statements and our auditors report
theraan, The Directors are responsibla for
thee othver information confained within the
Annual Report and Accounts,

Cwr opinion on the Finoncial Staterments
does not cover the other information and,
axcept to the extent otherwise explicithy
stated in this report, we do not express any
farm of assurance conclusion thenaon.

Cur responsibility is o read the other
information and, in doing so, consider
whether fhe ather information is maoterially
incangistent with tha Financial Statements
or our knowledge obtained in the course
of the audit or otherwisse appsaars fo be
materally misstated. If we idenfify such
maternial inconsistencies or apparent
materal misstaternents, we are required
to determine whether there is a material
misstatermeant in the Financial Statemeants

themsalves. I, based on the work we
hove performned, we conclude that there
is a materal misstaternent of the other
Inforrmation, we are required to report
that foct.

We have nothing fo report in this regard.

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS
PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPAMIES
ACT 2006

In cur oginion, basad on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Stategic
report and the Directors” report for the
financial yaar for which the Anancial
Statements are prepared Is consistent
with the Financial Stotements: and

+ the Strategic report and Directars’ report
have been prepared in accordance
with applicable lagal reguirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED
TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the Company and its
environmant obiained in the course of the
oudit. we have not identified maoterial
rnisstaternents in the Strategic repart ar
Directars’ report,

We have nothing to report in respact of the
following matters in relafion fo which the
Campanies Act 2006 requires us fo report
fo you if, in our opinicn:

+ adequate accounting records hove
nat been kept, o returns adequate for
cur audit have not been received from
branchas not visited by us, or

+ the Financial Statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’
remuneration specified by law ara not
race: ar

+ we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for aur audit,
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GOVERNANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RECLAIM FUND LTD coniiruec

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained mora fully in the Directors’
responsibilities staterment set out on poge
32, the Diractors are responsible for the
preparation of the Fnancial Statemeants
and for being satisfied that they give a frue
and fair view, and for such internal cantral
as the Directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of Anancial
Statermants that are free from materal
misstaternent, whether due to froud or emor,

In preparning the Financial Staterments, the
Directors are responsible for ossessing the
Compary’s ability to confinue as a going
concemn, disclosing, s applicable,
matters related fo going concerm and
using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the Directors either
intand to liquidate the Company or ta
cease operations, or hove no realistic
altermative but to do sa.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as o whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or arrorn, and 1o issue an auditor’s
report that includes cur opinicn.
Reasonable assurance i5 a high level of
assurance buf is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in occordonce with 15As
(LK) will alwoys detect a rmaterial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
o arise from fraued o arror and are
considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be
axpectad to influenca the economic
decisions of users tfoken on the basis of
thase Financial Statameants,

EXPLANATION AS TO WHAT EXTENT
THE AUDIT WAS CONSIDERED CAPABLE
OF DETECTING IRREGULARITIES,
INCLUDING FRAUD

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances
af non-complioncs with lows and
requlations. We design procadures inline
with our responsitilities, cutlined above, fo
datect iregularities, including fraud. The risk
of not detecting a material misstaterment
due fo frowed is higher than the risk of not
datecting one resulting from ermrmor, as froud
may invalve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or infentional
misrepresentations, or through collusicn

The extent to which our procedures are
capable of detecting irregularifies,
including froud is detailed below, However,
the primary responsibility for the prevention
and detection of fraud rests with both those
charged with governance of tha entity

and managerment,

+ We oblained an undearstanding of fhe
legal and regulatary framewaorks that
are applicakle fo the Company and
determinad that the most significant are
the Darmant Bonk and Building Scciety
Acoounts Act 2008, Companies Act
2006 and the capital requirements
imposad by the Finoncial Conduct
Autharity (FCA).

+ We understood how the Company is
camplying with those frameworks
through discussion with monagement
and understanding the Board and
Committee structure of the Comparny.
We reviewead Boord approved policies
and understood the manner in which
they are actioned by employees.

+ We reviewed the minutes of key
Commitfees in order to understand the
nature of the intermal reporting and
evaluated whather the sfructures in
ploce provided o robust fromewerk for
tha Directars to monitor compliance.

= We assessed the susceptibility of the
Company’s Financial Statements fo
material misstotement, including how
fraud might cocur by consideration of
both the risks inharent in the business
and the processes ond ossocioted
cantrols over financial reparting and
cash poyments, We designed a suite
of tests to aoddress these risks, including
testing of a sample of journal entries.
This ossessment was supplemented
wia discussion with managemeant and
those charged with governance.

+ Basad on this understanding we
designed our audit procedures to
identify non-complionce with such lows
and regulations. Our procedurnes
included the following:

+ fested a sample of invoices relating to
the Compary’s legal advisors to
supporting documentation;

= raviewad Boord and Board Committes
minutes;

+ raviewead regulatory coraspondence;
and

+ made enguinas of those charged with
QOVENManCEe.

A further description of our responsibilities
for the audit of the Financial Statements is
located on the Anancial Reporting
Council's website af hitps:/fwewfre.ong uk
fouditarsresponsibilifies. This description
ferms part of our auditor's repaort,

USE OF OUR REPORT

This rapart is mada salaly to tha
Caompany's members, as o body, in
acoordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006, Our audif work
has been undertaken 5o thot we might
state to the Compary’s mambers those
rmiatters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's repaort and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by low, we do not accept or assume
responsicility to anyvona other than the
Company and the Compary’s members
15 o body, for our audit work, Tor this regort,
or for the opinions we have formed.

GILES WATSON

(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Ernst & Yourng LLP

Statutory Auditar

Leeds

20 April 2021
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 29
Motes £000 £'000
Armounts received in respect of dormant accounts 4 B9.586 147,146
Interest income 5 4,563 &,414
Infarest expanse 8 (159) {162
Met income 93,990 153,400
Administrative expenses 3 (3.596) (3.281)
Provision for reclaims of dormant account balonces 12 (36,199) (99.230)
Operating result before distributions 54,195 90883
Pravision for future distributions to TMLCF 13 (53,990) (90.318)
Profit before taxation 205 565
Taxation (205) (365)
Retained profit - -

The notes on poges 41 to 56 form port of the Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 e
MNotes £°000 =000
Retained profit for the inancial year 2 - =

Cther comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation

Total comprehensive income for the financial year

Tolal comprehensive income is alfributable to the equity holders of the Company,
2008 prohikifs the capital reserve being distibuted to the parent Company.

The notes on pages 41 fo 56 farm part of the Financial Statements

The Dormant Bonk and Building Society Accounts Act
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 e

MNotes £°000 =000
Assets
Infangible assets 7 9 15
Right-of-use assets 9 276 306
Plant and equiprmeant & mom 1868
Investment securities 10 350,391 353.663
Cash and cash eguivalents N 342,079 329,888
Trade and ather recaivables 189 109
Defered fax asset ] 18 10
Current income fax asset 23 -
Total assets 693,086 &84177
Liabilities
Pravision for reclaims of dormant account balances 12 473,12 450,431
Pravision for future distributions 13 53,990 20,318
Trade and other payables 14 91,374 6% 156
Lease liabilities 21 297 nz
Current income tax liability - 247
Total liabilities 619,373 610,464
Capital and reserves
Share capital 16 - -
Capital reserve 73.M3 73,73
Total equity 7313 73,713
Total liabilities and equity 693,086 &84,177

The notes on poges 41 1o 56 form part of the Financial Stafernents.

Approved by the Booard of Directors on 20 Apil 20021 and signed on its behall By

ADRIAN SMITH
Chief Executive
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Motes £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating acfivities
Profit before tax 205 565
Adjustments:
Armortisation of intangibles 7 6 1
Depreciation of plant and eguipment 108 nz
Depreciation of ght-of-use asset ]| 3
Increase in trade and ofher receivables (80) (28)
Increassf{decraase) in accrued expenses asl (29
Decrease in lease liability (15) -
Additional prevision for reclaims of dormant account balances 12 36,199 59,238
Additional provision for future distributions 13 53,990 90,318
Inferest amaortisation 4,230 4,120
Irferest received (8,793) (10,6363
86,262 143,790
Cash flows from operating activities
Poyments made in respect of participant reclaims 12 (12,918) {12,859
Distribution payments 13 (68,481) (71,8001
Income fax paid (483) {60
MNet cash flows from operating activities 4,380 58,470
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investrment securities (199.875) (163,233
Proceeds from maturty of investiment secunfies 198,031 80,473
Proceeds from sale of investment securities - 4,508
Interest received 9.678 11,040
Purchase of plant and equipment & (23) (5%
Purchase of infangibles - (15
Met cash flows from investing activities 7.8M (67,288)
Met increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1219 (8.818)
Cash and cash eguivalents af the beginning of the financial year 329.888 338,706
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 1 342,079 329.888
The notes on pages 41 fo 568 form part of the Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Share Capital

capital resene Total
2020 £'000 £'000 £°000
Balance af the beginning of the financial year - 73.713 733
Total comprehensive income for the financial yvear - - =
Balance of the end of the financial year - 7an3 73,73
2mg
Balance at the beginning of the financial year - 7373 73713
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - - -
Balance of the end of the financial year - 7373 733

The notes on poges 41 to 56 form part of the Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Raclaim Fund Lid is a limited liakility company, incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales.

The Anancial Statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention. The Company's Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with Infernational Accountfing Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. All amounts
presentad are stoted in thousands of GEP (£'000), unless otherwise stated, The Statement of financial position is ordered according to
iliguidity and gives prominenca fo principal balances.

STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY
The accounting policies applied in preparing these Anancial Statemants are consistent with those described in the 2019 Annual Report
and Accounts

EXISTING POLICIES

Use of estimates and judgemenis

The preparation of the Annual Report and Accounts requires the Directors fo moke judgerments, estimates and assumplions that
affect the application of accounting policies ond the reported assets, liakilities, income and expenses. Actual resulfs moy differ from
thase estimatas,

Estimates and underlyving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing bosis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recagnised in the year
in which the estimate is revised and in any future yaars affected.

Significont areas of estimation uncertainty that have the most effect on the omounts recagnised in the Annual Report and Accounts
relate ta the provisions, in particular provisions for reclaims of dormant account balances of L473.7m (2019 £450.4m) and the provision
for future distribufions of £54.0m (2019: £90.3m). These are discussed below.

Provision for reclaims of dormant account balances
Upon transfer of dormant account monies from UK financial insfitutions to the Company, the cbligation fo repay dormant account
holders who subsegueantly reclaim their moneay is also fransferred to the Company.

Thie Comparny therefore records a provision for future repayments of domant account balances. Provisions are reviewed af the end of
each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current estimate, taking into account actual reclaim experience, The Directors regand
the provision as a key accounting estimata.

Te the extent that achual reclaims are different from those provided, odditional charges or income are reflected in future years,

Thie calculation of fhe provision far future repayments of dormant cccount balances is inherently complex, with significant amounts
af uncertainty in the guantum of reclaims expected and time paried for which reclaims will confinue, In performing the caloulation,
the Directars hove applied a level of stress which they believe reasonably occounts far the long-term nafure of the provision.

In addition, Management continues to monitor actual reclaim rates to assess whether the provisioning methadology remains
appropriate.

Far every 1% increass in the initial proportion of amounts received from participants since inception set aside for the provision far
reclairms of domant account balances, the impact on the operating result before distiibutions would be a reduction of £14.5m
(2019 £13.5m). There would be o subseguent egual and opposite decrease in the provision for distributions,

Provision for future distributions
The Dormant Bonk and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 dictates that the Company is obliged to pay over the excess of dormant
account manies received, after deduction of running costs, fo TMLCF for ongoing distribution to the benefit of the community.

Upon receipt of monies from participants. the Comparny also records a provision for future distributions, This represents omounts thot
the Company will expect ta pay aver fo TMLCF in future yvears. The Directors regard this provision as o key accounting estimate.

Mot all the surplus funds are paid over to THNLCF immeadiately, and the exact imings of hese future poyments are uncertain and depend
an the value and fiming of reclaims maode. Amounts are reclassified from the provision fo frade creditors following baoth Board approval
of a distributicn payrment and once clonty is received os to the timing of o request for poyment,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 ccrinued

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —oriinucd

Going concern

In detarmining whether it is appropriate to adopt the going concearn basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts, the Directors
hove considerad the Compory’s business activities and hove ossessed the impact of o number of severe economiz, regulatory and
technalagical stress scenanos, including o possible increase in reclaim rates due to the potential inancial impacts of COVID-19 causing
account holders to seek their lost funds. The Directors have clso assessed the legal form of the Company in light of the change in
awnership, and eviewed comespondence fram the Economic Secretary to the Treasury of the new owner's intention for RFL ta remain
aperationally independent under its new stafus, The Board has o numicer of mitigating actions that it could use to address any liquidity
shortfalls, the most significant being amending the timing and amount of assumed distributions which is in line with the Arficles of the
Company which determinas that the Board has fotal discretion over such matters,

Hoving carsfully considered the outputs of this analysis the Directors are satisfied that the Company has sufficient resources to mest
lickilities as they fall due for a pencd of one year from the dote of approval of the Financial Staterments and have therefone confinued fo
adopt the going concem baosis in prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts,

Amounts received in respect of dormant accounts
Armounts recened in respect of dormant accounts represent receipts, from porficiponts, of domant occount monies and are recognised
whare thare is a probability that future economic benealits will flow to the Company and thase benafits can be measurad raliably.

Interest income

Inferast incoms s recognised on an effective interest rate EIRY basis, inclusive of directly attibutable incremental transaction costs
and fees, and discounts and premiums where appropriate, The EIR spreads the interest income over the expected life of the instrurment.
The EIR s the rate that, at inception, exactly discounts expected future cash payments and receaipts through the expectad life of the
instrument fo the initial carrying amount. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates cash fiows considering all confractual terms
af the instrument (for example, prepoyment cplions). but does not consider future credit losses,

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet whan the Company hos a legal or constructive abligation as a result of o past event, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benafits will be required fo seftle the obligation. If the effect is matenial, provisions ara
determinad by discounting the expected future cosh flows at o pre-tax rote that reflects curment market ossessments of the time value of
maney and, wheare approgriate, the risks spacific to the liability,

Taxation

The Company is subject fo corporation fox. In accordanca with tax legislation, any profits arising from the Company's confinuing
activity of receiving dormant account monies ond moking distnbutions to THLCF are exempt from tax. Any profits remaining from net
investment income, after deduction of operaling expenses. are faxable,

Corpargtion tax can consist of both current toax and deferred fox, Corporation tax is recognised in the Income stotement except to the
extant it relotes to items recognised directly as other comprehansive income, in which case it is recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expacted tax payable on the faxable income for the year, using fax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
bolance sheet date.

Defarred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences betwesn the carrying amounts of assets
and liakilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for faxation purposes. The amcount of defered tax provided for is
bosad on the expacted manner of realisation or setflemant of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantivaly enacted ot the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that itis prebable thot future taxable profits will be available against which fhe
asset can be utiised. Defered tox assefs are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced fo the extent that it is no longer
proboble thot the reloted fax benefit will be released or realised,

Cash and cash equivalents
Coash and cosh equivalents comprise cash balonces ond balonces with o maturty of three months or less from the ccguisifion date,
which are readily convertible fo known amaounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant rsk of chonges in valuea.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —onfinuad g
Financial assets ﬁ
i} Recognition and initial measurement o
Investment securities are inificlly recognised when they are purchosed, Investment securifies are initiclly measured ot fair value plus o
directly atfributable fransaction costs. g
ii} Classification and measurement of financial assets
Investment securifies are subseguantly classiied af amortised cost. Management infends to hold the assets ta maturity fo collect
contractucl cash flows aond these cash fiows consist solely of payments of principal and inferest on the principal amaunt
autstanding. In assassing this, Management performs the following assessmeant;
a) Business model assessment
The overall business model is fo hold ossets fo maturity, investing ina mix of UK Government securities, high quality ogency
securities and corparate bonds, Management makes an assessmeant of this objective as part of the annual investment stralegy o
review to establish if this is shill oppropnate, E
m
B) Assessment whether canfractual cash flows ane salely poyments of prncipal and inferast g
In assassing wheather the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interast, Management congiders the ﬁ
m

confractual terms of the instfrument, This incledes assessing whether the financial asset containg o contractual ferm thot could
change the fiming or amount of contraoctual cosh flows, such that it would not meet this condition. In maoking this assessment,
hManogement considers:

« contingant events that would chonge the amount or timing of cash flows:
+ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including varable-rate featuras.

i) Impairment of investment securities
At aach reporting date, Management considers evidence of impairment for inoncial assets measured at amortised cost, assessing
whether there is objective evidence that o specific financial asset, measured of amorfised cost, is impaired.

At aach reporting period, Management calculates the ‘expected credit loss” (ECL) on the investment securities held. RFL has a
credit downgrode and vanation policy that defines a significont downgrode, making clear the circumstances inwhich a lifefime
credit loss requires caleulation, Manogament considers a debt security to hove low credit risk whean its credit risk rating is eguivalent
ta the globally understood definifion of ‘investment grade’, namely Boad or higher per Moady's or BBB- or higher per Stondard and
Poors. It an investment security experences a significant downgrade, then the litetime credit loss is caloulated,

12-mznth ECLs are the portion of ECLs that resulf frorm defoult events that are possible within the 12 maonths after the reporting date
{or a shorter periad if the expacted lite of the instrumeant is less than 12 months).

Lifetirne ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible defoult events over the expected life of o financial instrument.

iv) Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimote of credit losses, Cradif losses are measured os the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Comparny
expects to recelva). ECLs are discounted at the EIR of the financial asset.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve represants surplus funds affer cosfs, retained by the Company in order to mcintain the necessary capital base to
ensure the long-term viability of the organisation

Under fhe Dormmant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008, the capital reserve is not distributable fo the parent underfaking.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 ccrinued

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —oriinucd

Intangible assets

Infangible ossets comprise computer software recorded af cost less accumuloted amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the stroight-line method fo allocote the cost of the assets to their residual valuees over their estimated
useful lives, baing three years.

These assefs’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed ot each reporting date and odjusted if oppropnate,

Thie carrying valuas of computer software are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carying value may be impaired. IF any such condifion exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, in order to defermine
the extent of impairment, and the difference is charged to the Incoma staterment.

Plant and equipment
Al lant and equipmeant is recorded at cost less accumulatad depraciation and any impairment losses. Depraciation is caloulated
using the stroighi-line method to allocote the cost of the assets fo their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Fixtures and fitlings - five years
Computer hardware - fwo to three years

Thiesa assats’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed af each reporting date and adjusted if appropricte.

The carrying values of plant and equipmeant are reviewad for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. If any such condifion exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to deferming the
extent of impairment ond the difference is charged to the income stofement.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (... the dote the underlying asset is ovailoble
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilifies. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease akilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made ot or before the commencament date less any lease incentives received. The recagnised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straighf-line Dasis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use
assets are subject to impairment

Lease liabilities
At the commencemeant date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured ot the prasent value of lease payments
to be made over the lease ferm. Tha lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivale.

2. RETAINED PROFIT

2020 2009
£'000 £'000
Retained profit for the year is stated after charging:
Auditor's remunerafion
- audit of thase Financial Statements 51 44
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3. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The average number of employess during 2020 was ten (20019: fer), A breakdown of the administrative expenses for 2020 and 2019 s

shiown in the table below:

2020 209

£'000 £000
Stoff costs
- Woges and salaries 245 Gre
- Social security costs ne m
- Pansion costs 50 43

1,14 1133
Professional services 1.307 1.049
FCA fees and FSCS levies 28 24
IT and communication costs 212 16%
Premises costs 47 &3
Miscellaneous expenses 200 266
Depreciation and amartisation 144 144
Total operating costs 3,051 2,848
Irvestment management fees 545 433
Total administrative expenses 3,596 3,281

FINANCIAL SERVICES COMPENSATION SCHEME ('FSCS') LEVIES

The FSCS has, amangst other things, provided compensation fo custorners of financial institutions follawing the collopse of cartain

deposit takers in 2008, with the compensation paid out fo consumers being funded throuwgh loans frorm HMT. The Company was

previoushy included within the Deposit Taking class and was liable to pay a proportion of the inferest on the cutstanding amounts that

tha FSCS borrowed from HMT.

The Company is obliged to pay its share of managemeant expenses and compensation based upon the Company's proportion of the
total market profected deposits in the Dormant Assets Scheme class at 31 December of each year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - rucd

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMEMNTS
Details of the aggregate Directors’ emoluments for fine years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are shown Delow.
The fees for Mon-Executive Directars include only thase for whom the Company incurs fhe cost,

Perlormance Pension Cash In lieu of Benefits in Total

Salary/lees related pay' contributions® pension* kind®  emoluments

Year ended 31 Decambear 2020 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Mon-Executive Directors 197 - - - 5 202
Executive Director? 183 34 & 1 9 243
380 34 & 1 14 445

Performoncs Pension  Cash in lieu of Benefits in Testal

Salarylaes related pay!  contributions® pensiont kire® armaluments

Yaar ended 31 December 20019 000 £'ooo £000 000 £'ooo £000D
Mon-Executive Directors 235 - = - 20 255
Executive Director? 172 55 1 14 8 257
414 55 1 14 28 512

1 Perfarmoncs related pay is bosed on lirancial and ran-inandial peromance tangats

2 This represents amolurments of the highest poid Dinector of £243k (2019: £257K),

3 During fhe year one Directorn 2019 ane) was a mambear of o money purchase pension scheame

4 This represents cosh fokan in lisu of pansion for the Exscutive Director,

5 Benefits im kind are in respect of oar allewanoas for the Execulive Dirsctar, and trovel, accommoedalion and subsistence lor Non-Exaculive Directons lor which
Poy As You Earn and Mabonal Insuronce Contributions due are included
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4. AMOUNTS RECEIVED IN RESPECT OF DORMANT ACCOUNTS

During the year, £A%.6m (2019, £147.1m) was received in respact of dormant accounts funds, A detailed analysis of receipts by

participant is provided below:

2020 20019

Main Scheme Participant £'000 =000
Bank Leumi UK plc - 14
Baorclays Bank UK PLC 14,839 34,808
Butterfield Bank (UK} Limited - 70
CIMB Berhad 14 -
The Co-operatfive Bank plc 2,887 1,274
Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank - Londaon Branch - 26
Danske Bank 223 188
HSBC Bank plc 8,631 7456
Infesa Sanpaolo 5.p.A. - London Branch - ns
Lloyds Banking Group

Liowyicls Bank plo 6,577 12,740

Bank of Scotland plo 9,557 30,176
Matiorwide Building Sociaty 3,644 3,645
R Rophosl and Son PLC 17 -
Riyvad Bank - London Branch - 4
MatWest Group

Adam & Company plc 1 1

Coutts & Co n 4

Mational Westminster Bank plc 12,655 6,352

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc 3,850 1991

Ulster Bank Limited 763 738
Santander UK plc 22,020 A3.768
Virgin Money plc 3,289 3,047
Amounts received in respect of the Main Scheme 88,978 146,517

2020 e
Alternative Scheme Participant £'000 000
Cambridge Building Society nz -
Mewcostle Building Society 291 H2F
Amounts received in respect of the Alternative Scheme 608 H29
Total amounts received in respect of dormant accounts 89.586 147.14&
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

5. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

2020 20019
£'000 =000
Irferest inconme:
On investrnant securities 3909 3923
On cash depasifs 654 2,493
4,563 &, 416
Inferest expense;
On participant reclaims 142 144
O lease labilities 17 18
159 162
6. TAXATION
The Company is subject fo UK corporation fax. In accordanae with tax legisiation, any profit arsing from the Company's continuing

activity of receiving dormant account monies and moking distributions to TMNLCF is non-taxake. Any profit remaining from net
investment income, after deduction of operating expenses is faxable,

In accordance with 1&5 12 “Income Taxes', a reconciliation between accounting profit and tax charge for the year is provided below

2020 2019
£000 =000
Current tax
UK corporation tox on profits of 19% (2019 19%) 200 579
Adjustments in respact of pravicous yaars 13 )
213 577
Deferred fax
Crigination and reversal of fiming differences (12) (n
Adjustments in respact of pravious years 5 )]
Change in deferred foax rafe m -
(8) (12)
Total tax charge for the financial year 205 565
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6. TAXATION corfinusc

2020 pla)
£'000 £000
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax 205 565
UK comporation fox at 19% (2019 19%) 39 107
Mon-taxable incoms (17.021) (27230
Disallowalle provision for reclaim repayments 6,878 1,255
Disallowalle payments and provision for future distributions fo TMLCF 10,256 17134
Expenses not deductible for fax purposes 36 2
Prior year adjustment - current fax 18 )]
Change in deferred tax rate ) -
Total tax charge for the financial year 205 565

Following the 2020 Budget, on 11 March 2020, the Choncellor revoked fhe enacted corporation tax rote reduction from 19% 1o 17%,
theraby leaving it at 19%. Accordingly, each deferred fax balance has been re-measured individually bosed on the 19% enactad fax
rafe, (2019 17.0%). Following fhe 2021 Budget, on 3 March 2021, the Chancellor onnounced that with effect from 1 April 2023 the
corporation tox rate will increase by 6% to 25%. Deferred tax is caloulated using the rate expectad o apply when the relevant fiming

differences am forecast o unwind.

DEFERRED TAX
Thie moverment on deferred fax is as follows:

2020 2me

£'000 =000
Assetf{ability) at the beginning of the financial year 10 4]
Adjustments in respect of deferred tox of previous year 12 1
Income staterment (charge)/release in tha year (5) n
Change in deferred fax rate 1 -
Asset ot the end of the financial year 18 10
The balonces af the beginning and end of the financial year represent faxable temporary differences on fiked assets,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - COMPUTER SOFTWARE

2020
£'000
Cost
Opening balance ot 1 January 2020 &4
Additions =
Closing balance ot 31 Decemizer 2020 &4
Amortisation
Cpening balonce at 1 January 2020 49
Amortisation charge &
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 55
Carrying amount
Opening balance at 1 January 2020 15
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 9
8. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Fizntures Computer
& fittings hardware Total
£000 000 £'000
Cost
Opening balance ot 1 January 2020 114 am 415
Additions 5 18 23
Closing baolance at 31 December 2020 ne e 438
Depreciation
Opening balonce at 1 January 2020 103 126 229
Depreciation charge 10 G 08
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 1n3 224 337
Carrying amount
Opening balance at 1 January 2020 1 175 1846
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 t Gh 101
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9. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

2020
£000
Cost
Opening bolance af 1 January 2020 337
Additions =
Closing bolance at 31 Decembzer 2020 337
Depreciation
Cpening balonce at 1 January 2020 n
Depreciation charge N
Closing bolonce at 31 Decemiber 2020 62
Carrying amount
Opening balance at 1 January 2020 306
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 275
10. INVESTMENT SECURITIES
2020 209
£'000 £'000
Central governrments or central banks 38.4MN 77546
Supranationals 101,223 101.410
Comporates 207.418 171.0%7
Accrued inferaest 3,279 3.610
350,391 353.663

The carrying value of financial instruments measured at omortised cost is defermined in complionce with fhe occounting palicies on

page 43,

The table below sets out g summary of the carrying and fair values of financial assets classified as held to maturiby:

Carrying value Fair value
£'000 £'000
2020
Investment securities 350,391 353.007
209
Investment securities 353,663 355,338

Thie fair value of the investment securities is driven by interest rate movements: no impairment tiggers have been met inthe year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

10. INVESTMENT SECURITIES —orifinucd

VALUATION HIERARCHY

RFL classifies debt securifies in Level 1 only if it can be demonstrated on an individual security by security basis that these are quoted in
an active market: i.e, that the price quotes obfoined are representative of octual frodes in the market (through obtaining binding
quates or thraough corroboration to published market prices). Pricing providers cannat guaranies that the pricas that they provide ara
aosed on actual trades in the market. Therefore, all bonds are classified as Level 2

Of the total investment securities held, £14%.8m iz due o mature in less than 12 months from the reporting date.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES
Managament calculated the ECL an the investrment securnities at 31 December 2020 and concluded that the amount was not material,

and no adjustment was required.,

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2020 e
£'000 000
Cash and cash equivalents 342,079 329888

Cosh and cosh equivalents comprise £272.4m (2019 £218.2m) held with the Bank of Englond, £4.5m {2019 £3.7m) with HSBC Bank plc
and £66.2m (2019 £8.0m) held with the investment manager. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents eguates fo fair value.

12. PROVISION FOR RECLAIMS OF DORMANT ACCOUNT BALANCES

2020 2019

£000 £'000
At the beginning of the year 450,431 404,054
Additional provision created in the yvear - Main Schame 35,591 58.607
Additional provision created in the year - Altemative Scheme 608 &29
Utilised in the year (12,918) {12.859)
At the end of the year 473,12 450,431
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During the yvear, £12.9m (2019 €12.9m) of the provision for reclaims of dormant account balonces was ulilised. The table below shows
the total value of reclaims, categarised by the parficipants at which the individual's account was previously held:

2020 e

Main Scheme Parficipant £°000 =000
Australia & New Zealand Bank - London Branch = 13
Baorclays Bank UK PLC 810 20465
The Co-operative Bank plo 275 278
Danske Bank 49 3
HSBC Bonk plo 1,434 1.020
Lloyds Banking Group

Uoyds Bank plo 1.249 743

Bank of Scotlond pla 4,098 3827
Mationwide Building Sociaty 1,264 Thty
MatWest Group

Mational Westminster Bank ple a6l 494

The Royal Bank of Scotland ple 1] 21

Ulster Bank Limited 33 24
Santander UK plo 2,309 2,369
TEE Bank pla 35 m
Wirgin Money UK FLC

Chydesdale Bank plc 44 54

Wirgin Money plc 855 GH1
Amounts paid in respect of the Main Scheme 12,904 12.85%

2020 ame
Alternative Scheme Participant £'000 000
Mewcostle Building Society 14 -
Amounts paid in respect of the Alternative Scheme 14 -
Total amounts paid in respect of dormant accounts 12,918 12.85%
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

13. PROVISION FOR FUTURE DISTRIBUTIONS TO TNLCF

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
At the beginning of the year 90,318 68,481
Additional provision created in the year 53,990 Q0,318
Approved for districufion to TMLCF in 2021/2020 (see Note 14) (90,318) (68.487)
At the end of the year 53,990 Q0,218

L6B.5m of funds were distributed to TMLCF during the year (2019 £71.8m). See note 14 below, The closing 2020 balances of £54,0m woas
appraved for distribufion fo TMLCF on @ February 2021,

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2020 2009

E'000 =000

Armounts owed to TMLCF 290,318 68,481
Accrued expenses 1,056 &75
91.374 69,154

£90.3m was approved for distribution fo TMLCF during 2020 and is available for immediate distribution. Additionally, an 9 Fabruary 2021
a further £54.0m was approved for distribution fo TMLCF. £68.5m of funds were distributed fo THLCF during the year (2019 £71.58m).

15. PARENT UNDERTAKING

Effective from the change in ownership on 30 March 2021, the shares in the Company are owned by the Treasury Solicitor for the Affairs
of Her Majesty's Treasury inits capacity as nomines for HM Treasury, and the Company considers the UK Government ta be its ulfimate
parent and contreling party. As a Mon Deparfmental Government Body, RFL will be consclidated into the 2020-21 HM Treasury Group
Accounts, which are available ot www.gov.ukfofficial-documeants,

Frior fo the sale, the Company was a wholly cwned subsidiary of Angel Sguane Investments Limited which is incorporated in Great
Britain, s Annual Report and Accounts is available from 1 Angel Square, Manchester, ME&D 0AG. The ulimate parent undertaking was
the Co-operative Group Lid, which is incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales under the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2004, Its Annual Report and Accounts are availakle from 1 Angel Sguare, Monchester, MO0 DA,

16. SHARE CAPITAL
2020 e
£ £
Allotted, called up and fully paid
100 ordinary shares of £1 each 100 100

The new shareholder, the Treasury Solicitor for fhe Affairs of Her Majesty's Treasury in its copocity as nomines for HM Treasury, has full
vating rights. which was effective from 30 March 2021, Prior to this date, Angel Sguare Investments Limited had full voling righits,
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17. RELATED PARTIES
The Company has not entered into any transactions with Directars of the Company or theair immediate relatives,

UK GOVERNMENT

As descriped in note 15 to the Financial Statements, the Comparny considers the UK Government to be its ulimate controlling party,
Following the ONS reclassfication of RFL to a cenfral govermment body and therelby becoming a Mon Departmental Govermnment Body,
RFL will be consolidated into the 2020-21 HWMT Group Accounts, thereby giving rise to the relaficnship with government depoartments and
central government bodies.

18. RISK MANAGEMENT

LIauIDITY AND FUNDING RISK

Liguidity and funding risk is fhe risk fhat cash may nat be ovailable to pay abligotions when due of o recsonable cost, Operationalky,
this is the risk that unexpectedly high levels of reclaims are received and the Company doss nat have sufficient liguid assets o meeat
this abligation.

The Compary's palicy is o ensure that it has sufficient funds to meet its labiliies as they fall due, Liguidity and funding risk is mitigated
through effective cosh management. The Company operates fo a strict investrment mandate, which ensures that, af all times, o
substantial proportion of the Compary’s assets are held in a highly liguid farm,

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk of finoncial loss from a counterparty’s failure 1o settle inancial obligations as they fall due, Credit exposures arise
in the normal course of the Compary’s business from tha Company's cash deposits and investrments.,

Cosh depaosits are currently held with the Bank of England (272 4m, 2019 £318.2m), HSEC Bank plc (84.5m, 20019; £3.7m) and the
invastment manager ($65.2m, 201%: £8.0m). The Company considers its credit risk on cosh daposits to be minimal.

Investment decisions are made in line with a strict and coutious investment mandate in order to manage the Company’'s exposurs fo
credit risk. Investments comprizsa fixed income investmants, with inifial purchoses being resiricted to investments groded no lower than A-.

The maximum exposure fo credit sk at the balonce sheet date is LER2.5m (2019 £683.6m), being £342.1m cosh deposits and £350.4m
invastments (2019 £3299m cash deposits and £353.7m investments).

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk thot the Compaony tokes through exposune to the effects of fuctuations in the prevailing levels of market interast
rafes on its inancial position and cosh flows, Inferest income moy decreose as a result of such changes. The Company has limited
axposure to markat nsk, as its fixed incoma investmeants are all held to maturnity and accounted for as such.

19. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s primcary abjective in respect of capital managemant is o ensure that it hos sufficient capital now and, in the future, to
support the risks in fhe business. The Directors are responsible for ensuring capital is managed approgriately on an cngoing basis to meet
this objecte,

Thie Compony is required by the FCA to hold regulatory capital in respect of ifts activifies as a banking firn and capital consists of
the excess of assets over liabilifies. The Company has, ot all times during the year, hald sufficient copital fo mest its regulatory
capital requirameant.

The Company’s copital resources arg its capital and reserves of £73.7m (2019 £73.7m).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In accordance with the terms of the Act, BEL has inherted the liakility tor all dormant balancas transferred rom padicipants. The table
below highlights the fotal rermnaining exposure that RFL moy be reguired to settle above and beyond the amounts already set aside as
folloners:

2020 e

Remaining exposure £'000 £'000
Main Scheme B66,857 813,470
Alternative Scheme 1,856 244
B&6B.T13 814,414

21. LEASES

The lease commitment is in respect of the office premises in Crawe, A 15-year leose was entered into with effect from 4 Novermber 2014
Rantals are fixad, with a break clause exercisabla by RFL every five years.

Maturity analysis of lease liobilities is as follows:

2020
£'000
Within 1 year 27
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 123
Later than & years 147
297
The maverment in the lease liability is s follows:
2020
£'000
As at 1 January 2020 32
Lease poyments (32)
Interest expense 17
As at 31 December 2020 —

22. NON-ADJUSTING POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Effective from the change in ownership on 30 March 2021, the shares in the Company are owned by the Treasury Solicitor for the Affairs
aof Her Majesty’s Treasury in its capocity os nominee for HM Treasury, ond the Company considers the UK Government to be its uliimate
parent and confreling party.

A distribution fo TNLCF of £54.0m wos approved by the Boord on 9 February 2021
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OTHER INFORMATION AND PARTICIPANTS

PARTICIPATING BANKS AND BUILDING SOCIETIES

Dormant account moniss
received from parficipants

Reclaims poid to participants

Since Since
2020 inception 2020 inception
Main Scheme Participant £'000 £4000 £000 £000
Allied Irish Bank (UK) plo = FE73 = 124
Australio & New Zealand Bank - Londaon Branch - 3063 = 14
Bank Hapaoalim - Londan Branch - 1.889 - -
Bank Leumi UK pla - 2,610 - 165
Barclays Bank UK PLC 14,839 260,510 810 15,086
Butterfield Bank (UK) Limited - 78 - =
CIME Berhad 14 14 - =
Commonwealth Bank of Australia - London Branch - 4 - -
Consolidated Credit Bank Limited - 53 - -
The Co-operative Bank plc 2,887 18,4640 275 1,897
Credit Agricole Corporate & Invastrment Bank - London Branch - 552 -
Donske Bank 223 &.171 49 336
Duncan Lawrie Limited - 17 - -
Emirates MBD PJSC - Londeon Branch - 107 - 1
HSBC Bank plc 8,631 85,603 1,434 6,492
Intesa Sanpaaclo 5p.A. - London Branch - 15 - -
Lloyds Banking Group
Lloyds Bank pla 6,577 196,539 1,249 8.626
Bank of Scotlond ple 9.557 222,755 4,098 27108
Mationwide Building Sociathy 3,644 76932 1.264 2,877
M. M. Rothschild & Sons Limited - 20 - -
R Rophoel and Son PLC 17 17 - -
Rivad Bank - London Branch - 4 - -
MNatWest Group
Adam & Company plc 1 % - 1
Coufts & Co n 1,408 -
Maticnal Westminster Bank plc 12,655 142,562 361 372
The Royal Bank of Scotland plo 3,850 55,355 &8 kil
Ulster Bonk Limited 763 3153 33 247
Sontander UK plo 22,020 281,254 2,309 28,446
TSE Bonk plo = 12,354 35 4093
Wirgin Moneay UK PLC
Chydesdale Bank plo - 22,239 44 300
Wirgin Money plc 3,289 34,479 B55 5208
88,978 1,444 741 12,904 105,357
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OTHER INFORMATION AND PARTICIPANTS

PARTICIPATING BANKS AND BUILDING SOCIETIES

confinuad

Dormant account moniss

received from parficipants Reclaims poid to participants

Since Since

2020 inception 2020 inception

Alternative Scheme Participant £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cambridge Building Sociaty 37 37 = -
Mewcastle Building Society 29 20 14 14
&08 1.237 14 14

Total 89,586 1,445,998 12,918 105,371
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COMPANY INFORMATION AND ADVISORS

COMPANY INFORMATION

Recloim Fund Lid

Registered number: 073445584

Registerad office;

3rd Flocr

11-12 5% Jomes's Square
London

SWIY 4ALB

reclaimfund.co.uk

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR
Ermst ond Young LLP

1 Bridgewater Ploce
Waler Lane

Leads

L5311 Sar

INTERNAL AUDITOR
Deloitte LLP

1 City Square

Leeds

LS1 2aL

LEGAL ADVISOR
Addleshow Goddard LLP
Wilton Gate

A0 Chiswell Streat
Londeon

ECTY 445

Designad and produced by Instinctif Partners creative.instinctif.com

INVESTMENT MAMAGER
Goldman Sachs Asset
Management Infernaticnal
Flumtree Court

25 Show Lane

London

EC4a 4al

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of England
Threadneedle Streat
London

ECZR BAH

HEBC Bank plo
Level 20

8 Conada Square
London

El4 SH&
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reclaimfund.co.uk

Reclaim Fund Lid

Jrd Floor

11-12 5t James's Squara
Londeon

SWIY ALB

Reclaim Fund Lid is outhorised and regulated
by the Finoncial Conduct Authority (Mo, 536551)



